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To the members of Bestway Cement Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Bestway Cement Limited (the Company) for the year 
ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36  of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
review whether the Statement of Compliance re�ects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the 
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the �nancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 
control systems su�cient to plan the audit and develop an e�ective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the 
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the e�ectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately re�ect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Chartered Accountants 
Islamabad

Date:  11 September 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Bestway Cement Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed �nancial statements of Bestway Cement Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of 
�nancial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of pro�t or loss, the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash �ows for the year then ended, and notes to the �nancial statements, 
including a summary of signi�cant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the 
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of �nancial 
position, statement of pro�t or loss, the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash �ows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so 
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's a�airs as at 30 June 2020 and of the pro�t and 
other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash �ows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAS) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the 
Code) and we have ful�lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most signi�cance in our audit of the �nancial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the �nancial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.No. Key audit matter

(i) Revenue Recognition

  (Refer notes 4.12 and 26 to the �nancial statements)

 The Company is engaged in the production and sale of 
cement in the local and export market. The Company 
recognized gross revenue from the sales of cement in 
local market of Rs 61,795,395 thousand and in export 
market of Rs 1,892,359 thousand. During the year, the 
demand and price of cement decreased from last year.

 We considered revenue recognition as a key audit 
matter due to revenue being one of the key 
performance indicators of the Company, large number 
of revenue transactions with a large number of 
customers in various geographical locations, inherent 
risk of material misstatement and signi�cant decrease in 
revenue from last year.

Our audit procedures in relation to the matter, amongst 
others, included:
• Understood and evaluated management controls over 

revenue and checked their validation;
• Performed veri�cation of sample of revenue 

transactions with underlying documentation including 
dispatch documents and sales invoices;

• Performed cut-o� procedures on sample basis to ensure 
revenue has been recognized in the correct period;

• Checked on a sample basis, approval of sales prices by 
the appropriate authority;

• Performed recalculation of rebates, and discounts as per 
company’s policy on test basis;

• Performed analytical procedures to analyze variation in 
the price and quantity sold during the year; 

• Tested journal entries relating to revenue recognized 
during the year based on identi�ed risk criteria; and

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made in 
the �nancial statements related to revenue.

How the matter was addresses in our audit
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report theron

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report, but does not include the �nancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the �nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the �nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the �nancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the �nancial statements in accordance with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of �nancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the �nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s �nancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �nancial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in�uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these �nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the �nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the e�ectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

Our audit  procedures in relation to the matter, amongst 
others, included:

• Obtained understanding of management’s process for 
testing impairment of intangibles including goodwill;

• Assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s 
identi�cation of Cash Generating Unit;

• Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s 
valuation model and agreed relevant data to the 
underlying Company’s records;

• Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions used 
in the valuation model such as future sales volumes and 
prices, operating costs, in�ation, discount rate and 
long-term growth rate;

• Performed sensitivity analysis with respect to changes 
in key assumptions used in the valuation model; and 

• Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures made in 
the �nancial statements related to goodwill.

(ii) Impairment assessment of Goodwill

  (Refer note 16.4 to the �nancial statements)

 Goodwill that was recognized on business acquisition 
undertaken by the Company amounts to Rs. 7,062,111 
thousand as at 30 June 2020. The Company annually tests 
the carrying value of goodwill for impairment.

 The testing is subject to estimates and judgements made 
by the management of the Company with respect to 
future sales growth and pro�tability, cash �ow 
projections and selection of appropriate discount rate.

 We considered this as a key audit matter due to signi�cant 
judgements and assumptions made by management in 
determining the recoverable value.

How the matter was addressed in our auditS.No. Key audit matter
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signi�cant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the �nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the �nancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
�nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
signi�cant audit �ndings, including any signi�cant de�ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most signi�cance in the 
audit of the �nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest bene�ts of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of �nancial position, the statement of pro�t or loss, the statement of pro�t or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash �ows together with the notes thereon have been drawn 
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s 
business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Asim Masood Iqbal.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 11 September 2020
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

EQUITY

Share capital and reserves
Share capital
Capital reserves
Revenue reserves

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long term �nancing
Deferred tax liability - net
Employee bene�t obligations

5
6
7

8
10
11

12
13
8
9

 5,962,528
 8,217,695

 40,472,977
 54,653,200

 
  5,962,528 
 7,504,621 

 44,138,769 
 57,605,918 

               

 

                

               

              

 11,542,250
9,907,879

                -

10,617,491

24,890 

10,642,381

              

                               
27,915

 7,654,365 
 10,710,748 

 272,171 
 -

 37,967 
 18,675,251 

                             

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long term �nancing
Current portion of long term musharaka
Unclaimed dividend 

 21,478,044               

  8,059,754
 10,835,368

 3,375,360
 2,249,733

 213,797
 24,734,012

 

  

                

                

 40,153,295

94,806,495

             

Total equity and liabilities

Total liabilities

              92,982,311 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these �nancial statements. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

35,376,393
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

Note (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

15  55,789,469  57,242,086            
16  7,710,293                 7,794,154            
17  266,075                     262,349                  
18  13,687,830

              
 12,512,039

             118,418
                    

 118,038
                   77,572,085

              
 77,928,666

            

19  7,010,155

 

 5,511,210

 
 

 

20  2,291,473

 

 2,689,443

 

21  1,727,790

 

 2,101,856

 

22  175,924

 

 407,771

 

23  24,457

 

 26,862

 

24  841,700

 

 641,090

 

 4,815,220

 

 3,212,501

 

25  347,691
 

 462,912

 

 17,234,410

              

 15,053,645

 

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and goodwill
Investment property
Long term investments
Long term deposits

Non-current assets

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Advances
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Advance tax - net
Cash and bank balances

Total assets  94,806,495

              

 92,982,311

 

DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

2020 2019
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

Gross turnover 26  63,687,754             79,000,314            

Less: rebates and discounts  (2,243,317)              (2,354,731) 

Net turnover

Less: sales tax and excise duty  (24,315,711)  (23,044,071)           

Cost of sales
 37,128,726             53,601,512 

27  (36,011,992)            (37,556,552)           
Gross pro�t  1,116,734  16,044,960 

Other income 28  247,618  122,211                  

Selling and distribution expenses 29  (794,213)              (1,339,086) 

Administrative expenses 30  (579,308)              (711,411)             

Other expenses 31  (16,743)              (826,752)                 

Operating (loss) / pro�t  (25,912)             13,289,922            

Finance cost 32  (2,151,701)                 (1,498,473)             

Share of pro�t of equity-accounted investees - net of tax 33  1,671,133                1,454,101               

(Loss) / pro�t before tax  (506,480)             13,245,550 

Income tax credit / (charge) 34  555,732              (3,148,265)             

Pro�t for the year  49,252             10,097,285 

                        

 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 35  0.08                        16.93                       

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these �nancial statements. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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E�ect of translation of net investment in foreign branches and subsidiaries

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

Pro�t for the year  49,252  10,097,285            

Items that will not be subsequently reclassi�ed in pro�t or loss

Other comprehensive income (OCI):

Re-measurement of de�ned bene�t liability 12.4.5  40,788  24,604 

Related tax  (10,882)                        (6,564) 

 29,906  18,040                   

Company's share of equity-accounted investees' OCI

Re-measurement of de�ned bene�t liability  (196,981)  23,324  

Related tax  29,547   (3,499) 

 (167,434)                      19,825 

 (137,528)                    37,865                   

Items that may be reclassi�ed subsequently in pro�t or loss
Company's share of equity-accounted investees' OCI

Income from Window Takaful Operation

 33,689  1,119,622 

Available-for-sale �nancial assets - net change in fair value
-  -    

Related tax
 799,276  (470,525) 

 (119,891)                  70,579
 719,676 

 757,541 

 

Other comprehensive income - net of tax  575,546
 713,074                                  

Total comprehensive income for the year  624,798             10,854,826 

                        

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / pro�t  before tax  (506,481)                 13,245,550               

Adjustments for:

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (67,218) (18,605) 

Depreciation 15.1.5
28

 3,017,573  2,938,682 

 123,023  121,389 Amortisation 16.5

27  70,530   (6,482) Provision for obsolete stores

27

28

28

29

33

28
31

32

36

 (7,716) (400) Reversal of provision for slow moving stock

 (34,073)

 5,200

 (1,671,133)

 16,743

 368,866

 231,848

 2,405

 2,151,701

 (3,726)

 (1,293)

 (30,110)

(538)

-

(1,454,101)

(4,693)
16,697

1,498,473
90,968

 

  

 

 

  

 

Rental income

  

Pro�t on deposit accounts

 

Provision for doubtful debt

 

Share of pro�t of equity-accounted investees, net of tax

  

Change in fair value of investment property

Interest expense on land compensation

Finance cost

Provision for employee retirement bene�ts  75,585
 3,675,196

 (1,497,666)
 405,686

 (9,617)
 (1,857,825)

 (380)

 (2,038,445)

 309,367
 34,712

1,293
 1,131,326

 (422,176)

 (1,859,712)
 (39,162)

 (213,350)

 (521,151)

 3,168,715Changes in:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Advances

Deposits and prepayments

Other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operating activities

Long term deposits

Finance cost paid

Employee retirement bene�ts paid

Income tax paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Rent received from investment property

                        

Pro�t received on deposit accounts 

Dividends received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of long term �nancing

Repayments of long term musharaka

Proceeds from long term �nancing
Dividends paid

Net cash generated from / (used in)  �nancing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

 (1,223,362)
 1,945,353

 (1,960,914)

 (3,300,000)
 (2,200,000)

 (3,763,844)

 11,656,333

 (10,372,456)

 (10,363,057)

 9,399 1,597,459

(11,969,915)

(10,372,456)

2,392,489

 14,438 

 (1,452,476)

 (551,555)

 (2,056,373)

 15,806,570 

 (4,222,154)

 (98,641)

 49,058 

 30,692 

 538 

 989,670 

 (3,250,837)

 (2,700,000)

 (1,800,000)

 -   

 (6,458,274)

 (10,958,274)

3,151,280

16,396,830

 (316,128)

 263,595

 15,308

 2,251,345

 1,669,038

 1,135,000

 (1,562,452)

 3,455,706

 19,852,536

DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

 Bestway Cement Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 22 December 1993 
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on 30 May 2017) and its 
shares are quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since 09 April 2001. The Company is principally engaged in 
production and sale of cement. 

 The Company is a subsidiary of Bestway (Holdings) Limited, U.K. (the holding company), which holds 56.43% shares in the 
Company. Bestway (Holdings) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bestway Group Limited, U.K. ("the ultimate parent 
company").

 Registered o� ice of the Company is situated at Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad, Pakistan. The 
Company’s cement manufacturing plants are located at Hattar, Farooqia, Chakwal and Kallar Kahar (refer to note 15.1.3 for 
complete addresses). The Company’s sales o�ce is located at House 276, Near Riphah University, Peshawar Road, 
Rawalpindi, Pakistan. The Company’s procurement o�ce is located at UBL Building, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad, Pakistan. 
The Company has other regional o�ces located in Lahore, Peshawar and Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards), issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as noti�ed under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 di�er from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of 
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

 The applicable �nancial reporting framework for equity-accounted investees also include Banking Companies Ordinance, 
1962, Insurance Ordinance, 2001 and underlying Rules and Directives.

2.2 Basis of measurement

 The �nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for the following items, which are 
measured on the following basis annually on each reporting date.

 Item      Measurement basis

 Investment property    Fair value

 Net de�ned bene�t liability    Present value of the de�ned bene�t obligation determined through  
       actuarial valuation

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees (PKR or Rupee) which is the Company’s functional and presentation 
currency. All amounts have been rounded o� to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of judgements and estimates

 In preparing these �nancial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that a�ect the 
application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may di�er from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

 The areas where various assumptions and estimates are signi�cant to the Company’s �nancial statements or where 
judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

 Notes 4.3, 10 and 34 Recognition of deferred tax and estimation of income tax provisions
 Notes 4.2 and 12.4  Measurement of de�ned bene�t obligation – key actuarial assumptions
 Notes 4.4, 4.5 and 14 Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the  

    likelihood and magnitude of an out�ow of resources
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

 Notes 4.6 and 15  Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment
 Notes 4.7 and 16  Useful lives, residual values and amortization method of intangible assets
 Note 16.4   Impairment test of goodwill: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts
 Note 17   Fair value of investment property
 Note 4.15   Impairment of �nancial assets and non-�nancial assets other than inventories
 Note 4.10, 4.11, 19 and 20  Provision for stores and spares and stock in trade  
 Note 4.16   Right of use asset and related lease liability

 Measurement of fair values

 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair value, both for �nancial 
and non-�nancial assets and liabilities.

 The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Management has 
overall responsibility for overseeing all signi�cant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

 Management regularly reviews signi�cant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such 
as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained 
from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be 
classi�ed. 

 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair 
values are categorised into di�erent levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows.

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. 

as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in di�erent levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is signi�cant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair 
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

3.1 The Company has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with e�ect from 01 July 2019. IFRS 16 “Leases” has replaced IAS 17 “Leases”, 
the former lease accounting standard, and has become e�ective from annual accounting periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2019. Under the new standard, almost all leases which meet the criteria described in the standard 
will be recognized on the statement of �nancial position with only exceptions of short term and low value leases. 
Under IFRS 16, an asset (the right to use the leased item) is recognized along with corresponding �nancial liability to 
pay rentals at the present value of future lease payments over the lease term, discounted with the speci�c 
incremental borrowing rate.

 The Company’s lease portfolio includes lease contracts which are extendable through mutual agreement between 
counter parties or cancellable by both parties immediately or on a short notice. Accordingly, the Company has 
concluded that where the lease term of contracts is short-term in nature i.e. with a lease term of twelve months or 
less at the commencement date, right of use assets is not recognized and payments made in respect of these leases 
are expensed in the statement of pro�t or loss. 

 The Company has adopted IFRS 16 using the modi�ed retrospective approach and the Company has assessed that 
the adoption of IFRS 16 does not have any material �nancial impact on these �nancial statements.

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet e�ective and have not been early 
adopted by the Company:
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 The management anticipates that adoption of above amendments in future periods, will have no material impact on the 
�nancial statements other than in presentation / disclosures.

3.3 Further, the following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are 
yet to be noti�ed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in 
Pakistan;

 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
 IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

3.4 The following interpretation issued by the IASB has been waived o� by SECP:
 IFRIC 12  Service concession arrangement

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these �nancial statements, 
except as disclosed in note 3.1.

4.1 Business combinations

 The Company accounts for business combination using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Company. 
The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identi�able net assets acquired. 
Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on bargain purchase is recognised in pro�t or loss 
immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to 
the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in pro�t or loss. Any contingent gain is 
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the de�nition of 
a �nancial instrument is classi�ed as equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. 
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in pro�t or loss.

 Subsidiaries: Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or 
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to a�ect those returns through its 
power over the entity.

 Non-controlling interests (NCI): NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identi�able net assets at 
the date of acquisition. Changes in the Company’s interest in a subsidiary, except those part of the initial acquisition 
transaction, that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

 Loss of control: When the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in pro�t or loss. Any 
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

 Interests in equity-accounted investees: The Company’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise of interests in 
associates. Associates are those entities in which the Company has signi�cant in�uence, but not control over the �nancial 
and operating policies.

Effective date (annual reporting
periods beginning on or after)

IAS 1

IAS 8

IAS 16

IAS 37

IAS 39

IAS 41

IFRS 3

IFRS 4 

IFRS 7

IFRS 9

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2020

January 1, 2020

Presentation of �nancial statements (Amendments)

Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors (Amendments)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Amendments)

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Amendments)

Agriculture (Amendments)

Business combinations (Amendments)

Insurance contracts (Amendments)

Financial instruments: disclosures (Amendments)

Financial instruments (Amendments)

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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 Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost, which includes 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the �nancial statements include the Company’s share of the pro�t or 
loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investee, until the date on which signi�cant in�uence ceases.

 Intra-company transactions: Intra-company balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising 
from intra-company transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted 
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Company’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses 
are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

4.2 Employee bene�ts

 Short-term employee bene�ts: Short-term employee bene�ts are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 De�ned contribution plan: The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its employees whose 
services were transferred to the Company upon amalgamation of the Pakcem Limited (herein after referred as “Pakcem”). 
Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund by the Company and the employees, at the rate of 10% of the employee’s 
basic salary. The Company’s contribution to the provident fund is expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payment is available.

 De�ned bene�t plans: The Company operates the following de�ned bene�t plans:

 (a) Gratuity: A separate Employees’ Gratuity Fund, established through a registered trust deed. The employees 
transferred to the Company on the amalgamation of Pakcem into the Company are not covered under this 
scheme. The calculation of de�ned bene�t obligations in respect of gratuity is performed annually by a quali�ed 
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method. The Company’s net liability in respect of de�ned bene�t 
plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future bene�t that employees have earned in the current and prior 
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of plan assets.

  Re-measurement of the net de�ned bene�t liability, which comprises actuarial gains and losses, are recognised 
immediately in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net de�ned bene�t 
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the de�ned bene�t obligation at the 
beginning of the annual period to the then-net de�ned bene�t liability (asset), taking into account any changes in 
the net de�ned bene�t liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and bene�ts payment.  Net 
interest expense and other expenses related to de�ned bene�t plan is recognised in pro�t or loss.

 (b) Un-availed leaves: The Company recognises provision for un-availed leaves on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related services are provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under 
un-availed leaves if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The un-availed leaves are 
payable to employees at the time of retirement/termination of service. The provision is determined on the basis of 
last drawn salary and accumulated leaves balance at the reporting date.

4.3 Income tax

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in pro�t or loss except to the extent that it relates 
to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

 Current tax: Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or 
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that re�ects uncertainty related to income 
taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes 
any tax arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are o�set if certain criteria are met.

 Deferred tax: Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary di�erences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for �nancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

 • temporary di�erences on initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that a�ects neither accounting nor taxable pro�t or loss;

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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 • temporary di�erences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that 
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary di�erences and it is probable that they will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

 • taxable temporary di�erences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary di�erences to the 
extent it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable pro�ts are 
determined based on business plans for the Company and the reversal of temporary di�erences. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax bene�t will be 
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable pro�ts improves. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
pro�ts will be available against which they can be used.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary di�erences when they reverse, using 
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax re�ects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle 
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured at fair 
value is presumed to be recovered through sale, and the Company has not rebutted this assumption. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are o�set if certain criteria are met.

4.4  Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the statement of �nancial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event, and it is probable that an out�ow of economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
�ows at a pre-tax discount rate that re�ects current market assessment of time value of money and risk speci�c to the liability. 
The unwinding of discount is recognised as �nance cost.

4.5 Contingent liabilities

 A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will 
be con�rmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not 
probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount 
of the obligation cannot be measured with su�cient reliability.

4.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Recognition and measurement: Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized 
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land and capital work in 
progress are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

 If signi�cant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have di�erent useful lives, then they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised in pro�t or loss.

 Subsequent expenditure: Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic bene�ts 
associated with the expenditure will �ow to the Company.

 Depreciation: Depreciation is calculated to write o� the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their residual 
values using the reducing balance method, except leasehold land, buildings and plant and machinery which are depreciated 
on a straight-line basis. Depreciation is recognised in pro�t or loss. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the leased 
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Rates of depreciation/estimated useful lives are mentioned in note 15.1.1. Depreciation is 
charged on prorate basis from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is charged for the 
month in which the asset is disposed o�. Days in excess of �fteen days are considered as full month for the purpose of 
calculation of depreciation. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate.

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED
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4.7 Intangible assets and goodwill

 Recognition and measurement

 Goodwill: Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

 Other intangible assets: Other intangible assets include brands that are acquired by the Company and have �nite useful lives 
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

 Subsequent expenditure: Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic bene�ts 
embodied in the speci�c asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated 
goodwill and brands, is recognised in pro�t or loss as incurred.

 Amortisation: Amortisation is calculated to write o� the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is recognised in pro�t or loss. Goodwill is not amortised. The 
estimated useful lives of intangible assets are given in note 16.1. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

4.8 Investment property

 Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in pro�t or 
loss. Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the di�erence between the net proceeds from disposal 
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in pro�t or loss.

4.9 Foreign currency 

 Transactions in foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the exchange rate at the 
reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency di�erences are recognised in pro�t or loss.

4.10 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. For items which are 
slow moving and/or identi�ed as surplus to the Company’s requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book 
value over estimated net realizable value. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tools on 
a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4.11 Stock in trade

 Stocks of raw materials, work in process and �nished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
calculated using the weighted average method and comprises of direct materials, labor and appropriate manufacturing 
overheads. Net realizable value signi�es estimated selling price less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost to sell. 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence.

4.12 Revenue

 Sale of goods: Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satis�ed by transferring control of a promised 
goods or service to a customer, and control either transfers over time or at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

 Income on investments: Income on investments at amortised costs and bank deposits is recognized on time proportion basis 
using the e�ective yield method.

 Rental income from investment property: Rental income from investment property is recognised as revenue on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as integral part of the total rental income, over the 
term of the lease.

4.13 Finance income and �nance costs

 The Company’s �nance income and �nance costs include interest income, interest expense, foreign currency gain or loss on 
�nancial assets and �nancial liabilities. Interest income or expense is recognised using the e�ective interest method. Mark-up, 
interest and other charges on borrowings used for the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised up to 
the date when the qualifying assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Borrowing cost is included in the related 
property, plant and equipment acquired/constructed out of the proceeds of such borrowings.
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4.14 Financial instruments

 Financial assets

 Classi�cation: The Company classi�es its �nancial assets in the following measurement categories:

 - Amortised cost where the e�ective interest rate method will apply;

 - Fair value through pro�t or loss (FVTPL); and

 - Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 The classi�cation depends on the entity’s business model for managing the �nancial assets and the contractual terms of 
the cash �ows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in pro�t or loss or other comprehensive income 
(OCI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has 
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

 The Company reclassi�es debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

 Recognition and derecognition: Regular way purchases and sales of �nancial assets are recognised on trade-date, the 
date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, �nancial assets are derecognised when the 
rights to receive cash �ows from the �nancial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

 Measurement: At initial recognition, the Company measures a �nancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a �nancial 
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the �nancial asset. Transaction costs 
of �nancial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of pro�t or loss.

 Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for 
managing the asset and the cash �ow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the 
Company can classify its debt instruments:

 • Amortised cost: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash �ows where the contractual 
terms of the �nancial assets give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that represent solely payments of principal 
and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these �nancial assets is included in other 
income using the e�ective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly 
in pro�t or loss and presented in other income together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment 
losses are presented as separate line item in the pro�t or loss.

 • Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash 
�ows and for selling the �nancial assets, where the contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed 
dates to cash �ows that represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in 
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest 
revenue, and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in pro�t or loss. When the �nancial asset is 
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassi�ed from equity to statement of 
pro�t or loss and recognised in other income. Interest income from these �nancial assets is included in other 
income using the e�ective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income 
and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of pro�t or loss.

 • Fair value through pro�t or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are 
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in 
pro�t or loss and presented net within other income in the period in which it arises.

 Equity instruments: The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s 
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent 
reclassi�cation of fair value gains and losses to pro�t or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends 
from such investments continue to be recognised in pro�t or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive 
payments is established.
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 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are classi�ed in the following categories:
 - fair value through pro�t or loss; and
 - other �nancial liabilities.

 The Company determines the classi�cation of its �nancial liabilities at initial recognition. All �nancial liabilities are 
recognized initially at fair value and, in case of other �nancial liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs. 
The subsequent measurement of �nancial liabilities depends on their classi�cation, as follows:

 Fair value through pro�t or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through pro�t or loss include �nancial liabilities 
held-for-trading and �nancial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through pro�t or loss. The 
Company has not designated any �nancial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through pro�t or loss.

 Other �nancial liabilities: After initial recognition, other �nancial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently 
measured at amortized cost, using the e�ective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognized in pro�t or loss for 
the year, when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through e�ective interest rate amortisation process.

 The Company derecognises �nancial liabilities when and only when the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or they expire.

 Financial assets and liabilities are o�set and the net amount is reported in the statement of �nancial position if the Company 
has a legally enforceable right to set o� the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.15 Impairment

 Financial assets: The Company assesses on a historical as well as on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses 
(ECL) as associated with its trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and bank balances carried at 
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a signi�cant increase in credit 
risk. For trade debts, the Company applies IFRS 9 simpli�ed approach to measure the expected credit losses (loss 
allowance) which uses a life time expected loss allowance to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables 
while general 3-stage approach for deposits, advances and other receivables and cash and bank balances i.e. to measure 
ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL if credit risk on a �nancial instrument or a group of 
�nancial instruments has not increased signi�cantly since initial recognition.

 The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude 
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given 
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted for factors that are speci�c to the 
counterparty,  general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of 
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for 
�nancial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward 
looking, based on 12 month expected credit losses where there has not been a signi�cant increase in credit risk rating, 
otherwise allowances are based on lifetime expected losses.

 Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by the risk of 
default which is applied to the cash �ow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating, allowances are recognised 
when there is reduction in the net present value of expected cash �ows. On a signi�cant increase in credit risk, allowances 
are recognised without a change in the expected cash �ows, although typically expected cash �ows do also change; and 
expected credit losses are rebased from 12 month to lifetime expectations.

 The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a 
signi�cant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a 
signi�cant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as at the 
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and 
supportable forward-looking information.

 The following indicators are considered while assessing credit risk:
 - actual or expected signi�cant adverse changes in business, �nancial or economic conditions that are expected  

  to cause a signi�cant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;
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 - actual or expected signi�cant changes in the operating results of the debtor;
 - signi�cant increase in credit risk on other �nancial instruments of the same debtor; and
 - signi�cant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party   

  guarantees, if applicable.

 The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as 
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

 - when there is a breach of �nancial covenants by the counterparty; or
 - information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay  

  its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

 Irrespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Company considers that default has occurred when a debt is 
more than 365 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a 
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

 A �nancial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash 
�ows of that �nancial asset have occurred. Evidence that a �nancial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data 
about the following events:

 - signi�cant �nancial di�culty of the issuer or the borrower;
 - a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
 - the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s �nancial di�culty,  

  having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;
 - it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other �nancial reorganization; or
 - the disappearance of an active market for that �nancial asset because of �nancial di�culties.

 The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simpli�ed approach. The measurement of ECL re�ects:

 - an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
 - reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current 

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

 Trade debts with individually signi�cant balance are separately assessed for ECL measurement. All other receivables are 
grouped and assessed collectively based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit losses 
on these �nancial assets are estimated using a provision matrix approach based on the Company’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are speci�c to the debtors,  general economic conditions and an assessment of both the 
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

 Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of signi�cant increases in credit risk 
at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the �nancial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

 - Nature of �nancial instruments;
 - Past-due status;
 - Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
 - external credit ratings where available.

 The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar 
credit risk characteristics.

 The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of pro�t or loss for all �nancial instruments with a 
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt 
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the �nancial asset in the 
statement of �nancial position.

 The Company writes o� �nancial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery e�orts and has 
concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based 
on unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate su�cient future cash �ows to repay the amount.

 The Company may write-o� �nancial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written o� will result in impairment gains.

-
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 Non-�nancial asset: Assets that have an inde�nite useful life are not subject to depreciation/amortization and are tested 
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation/amortization are reviewed for impairment at each 
statement of �nancial position date, or wherever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which the asset's carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For 
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identi�able 
cash �ows. Non-�nancial assets that su�ered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each 
statement of �nancial position date. Reversals of the impairment loss are restricted to the extent that asset's carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if 
no new impairment loss had been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in income 
for the year.

4.16 Leases

 Policy applicable after 01 July 2019:

 Right of use asset: The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of the contract. The 
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use  asset  is  
initially  measured  at  cost,  which  comprises  the  initial  amount  of  the  lease  liability  adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and 
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received.

 The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the 
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of 
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the 
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the 
lease liability.

 Where the Company determines that the lease term of identi�ed lease contracts is short term in nature i.e. with a lease 
term of twelve months or less at the commencement date, right of use assets is not recognized and payments made in 
respect of these leases are expensed in the statement of pro�t or loss.

 Lease liability: The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily determined,  
the  Company’s  incremental  borrowing  rate.  Generally,  the  Company  uses  its  incremental  borrowing rate as the 
discount rate.

 Lease payments in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

 a. �xed payments, including in-substance �xed payments;
 b. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the  

  commencement date;
 c. amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
 d. the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments  

  in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties  
  for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

 The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a 
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate 
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of 
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

 When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the 
right of use asset, or is recorded in pro�t or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Variable lease payments are recognised in the pro�t or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those 
payments occurs.
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 Policy applicable before 01 July 2019: 

 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease: At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines 
whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, 
the Company separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those 
for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Company concludes for a �nance lease that it is 
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair 
value of the underlying asset; subsequently, the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed �nance cost on 
the liability is recognised using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

 Lease assets: Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classi�ed as �nance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the 
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

 Assets held under other leases are classi�ed as operating leases and are not recognised in the Company’s statement of 
�nancial position.

 Lease payments: Payments made over operating leases are recognised in pro�t or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of 
the lease.

 Minimum lease payments made under �nance leases are apportioned between the �nance expense and the reduction of 
the outstanding liability. The �nance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

4.17 Share capital and dividend

 Ordinary shares are classi�ed as equity and recognised at their face value. Dividend distribution to the shareholders is 
recognised as liability in the period in which it is declared.

4.18    Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Short term �nance facilities availed by the Company, which 
are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as part of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash �ows.

4.19 Operating pro�t

 Operating pro�t is the result generated from continuing principal revenue producing activities of the Company as well as 
other income and expenses related to operating activities. Operating pro�t excludes �nance costs, share of pro�t of equity 
accounted investees and income taxes.

4.20 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the pro�t and loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the pro�t and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the e�ects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.21 Fair value measurement

 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which 
the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability re�ects its non-performance risk. 

 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both �nancial 
and non-�nancial assets and liabilities. When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using 
the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or 
liability take place with su�cient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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 If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all 
of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long 
positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

 The best evidence of the fair value of a �nancial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the 
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition di�ers 
from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical 
asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insigni�cant in 
relation to the measurement, then the �nancial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the 
di�erence between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that di�erence is 
recognised in pro�t or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is 
wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.
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5. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

700,000,000 (2019: 700,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each

2020 2019

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

5.1 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to 
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. 

5.2 Bestway (Holdings) Limited, U.K. holds 336,445,868 i.e. 56.43% shares in the Company as at 30 June 2020 (2019: controls 
336,445,868 i.e. 56.43%). Bestway (Holdings) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bestway Group Limited. Directors 
and associated companies hold 102,104,098 (2019: 102,104,098) and 23,324,913 (2019: 23,324,913) ordinary shares 
respectively at year end.        

5.3 Capital management     

 The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market con�dence and sustain 
future development of the business. The Board of Directors of the Company monitor the return on capital, which the Company 
de�nes as net pro�t after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also determine the level of 
dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

514,163,552

 
 64,038,422

 
 1,182,944

 
 16,867,865 

 

596,252,783 

514,163,552

 
 64,038,422

 
 1,182,944

 
 16,867,865

 

 596,252,783 
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 2,435,210 
 38,037,767 
 40,472,977 

 2,273,286 
 41,865,483 
 44,138,769 

7. REVENUE RESERVE

8. LONG TERM FINANCING
 
 Term �nance facility - secured  
 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities  

Statutory reserve
Unappropriated pro�t

6.1 This amount represents the Company's share in reserves of equity-accounted investees. This amount is not available for 
distribution. 

7.1 This represents statutory reserves carried by United Bank Limited (''UBL''), an equity-accounted investee, under section 21 
of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.         
 

7.2 This represents unappropriated pro�t and is available for distribution.      

8.1 The entire amount of Rs. 3.37 billion which was classi�ed as current portion of previous syndicate term �nance facility as 
at June 30, 2019 has been repaid during the year.

 The current year amount includes new term �nance facilities amounting to Rs.11.20 billion obtained from Allied Bank 
Limited, Habib Bank Limited, and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. It also includes an amount of Rs. 0.16 billion of 
markup accrued on it. Habib Bank Limited and Allied Bank Limited facilities are repayable in 06 semi-annual instalments 
which will start from October 2022 and November 2022, respectively. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China facility is 
repayable in 04 semi-annual instalments which will start from December 2021.  Mark-up is payable on semi annual basis and 
the rate ranges from 6-month KIBOR plus 0.15% per annum to 6-month KIBOR plus 0.20% per annum. 

 Further, the Company has also availed salary re�nance facility from MCB Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 0.45 billion. It also 
includes an amount of Rs. 0.14 million of markup accrued on it. This facility is repayable in 08 quarterly instalments which will 
start from January 2021. Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of 0.4% per annum.

 These facilities are secured under hypothecation charge against all present and future current and �xed assets of the 
Company excluding (land and building) for an amount of Rs. 16.27 billion.
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2020 2019
Note

6. CAPITAL RESERVES

Share premium on ordinary shares
OCI accumulated in reserves:
- Exchange translation reserve
- Revaluation reserves

2020 2019
Note

 5,381,821 

 2,704,962 
 130,912 

 2,835,874 
 8,217,695 

 5,381,821 

 2,671,273 
 (548,473)

 2,122,800 
 7,504,621 

6.1

2020 2019
Note

7.1
7.2

8.1  11,814,421 
 (272,171)

 11,542,250 

 3,375,360 
 (3,375,360)

 -   - 
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9. LONG TERM MUSHARAKA

Syndicate musharaka facility - secured  
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

2020 2019

 -   
 -   
 -   

  2,249,733 
 (2,249,733)

 -   

The entire amount of Rs. 2.25 billion which was classi�ed as current portion of long term musharaka as at
June 30, 2019 has been repaid during the year.        

2020 2019

 9,907,879  10,617,491 

10.1.1 Based on the Company's estimate of future export sales, adjustment of Rs. 620 million (2019: Rs. 820 million) has been 
made in the taxable temporary di�erences at the year end.

(Rupees ‘000)

(Rupees ‘000)

 9,264,635 
 3,226 

 188,417 
 (96,790)

 1,265,810 
 

11,734 
 -   
 -   

 (19,541)
 10,617,491 

 133,220 
 (32,392)

 196,610 
 -   

 80,971 
 

-   
 (533,675)
 (635,984)

 (19,588)
 (810,838)

 -   
 -   

 119,891 
 -   

 
(29,547)

10,882 
 101,226 

 9,397,855 
 (29,166)

 385,027 
 23,101 

 1,346,781 
 

(17,813)
 (533,675)
 (635,984)

 (28,247)
 9,907,879 

 -   
 9,907,879 

 -   
 (29,166)

 -   
 -   

 
(17,813)

 (533,675)
 (635,984)

 (28,247)
 (1,244,885)
 1,244,885 

 -   

 9,397,855 
 -   

 385,027 
 23,101 

 1,346,781 
 

-   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 11,152,764 
 (1,244,885)
 9,907,879 

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Available for sale investments
Share of pro�t of equity accounted investees
Other di�erences related to equity 
accounted investees
Minimum tax 
Unused tax loss credits
Other temporary di�erences
Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities
Set-o� of tax
Net tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Available for sale investments
Share of pro�t of equity accounted investees
Other di�erences related to equity 
accounted investees
Other temporary di�erences
Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities
Set-o� of tax
Net tax liabilities

 9,264,635 
 3,226 

 188,417 
 -   

 1,265,810 
 11,734 

 -   
 10,733,822 

 (116,331)

 10,617,491 

 1,475,890 
 (168,934)
 188,417 

    
 69,665 

    
 1,607 

 1,566,645 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 (70,579)
 -   

 3,499 
 6,564 

 (60,516)

 7,788,745 
 172,160 

   
 (26,211)

 1,196,145 
 8,235 

 (27,712)
 9,111,362 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 (96,790)

 -   
 -   

 (19,541)
 (116,331)
 116,331 

 -   

 9,264,635 
 3,226 

 188,417 
 (96,790)

 1,265,810 
 11,734 

 (19,541)
 10,617,491 

 -   

 10,617,491 

-

-

-

Breakup and movement of deferred tax balances is as follows:

8
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12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

12.3 Workers' Welfare Fund payable  

2020 2019

 Actuarial valuation of un-availed leaves has not been carried out since management believes that the e�ect of actuarial 
valuation would not be material.        

12.1 These represent amounts received as security deposits from customers and suppliers of the Company, which are utilisable 
for the purpose of the business in accordance with their respective agreements. 

12.2 Receivable from Workers' Pro�t Participation Fund amounting to Rs. 5.36 million has been classi�ed as a current asset in 
other receivables as at 30 June 2020 (refer note 24.3).

Payable to contractors and suppliers 
Accrued liabilities  
Advances from customers  
Security deposits  
Retention money  
Workers' Pro�t Participation Fund payable
Workers' Welfare Fund payable 
Sales tax payable  
Excise duty payable  
Advance rent of investment property 
Donations payable to Bestway Foundation
Payable to employees' provident fund 
Payable to employees' gratuity fund 
Withholding taxes payable  
Other payables

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Allocation for the year  
Adjustments claimed against income tax 
 Balance at the end of the year

 

10.1.2 Minimum tax credit will expire by the year ended 30 June 2025. While, unused tax loss credits represents unclaimed 
depreciation and is available for set o� against future pro�ts inde�nitely.      
       

2020 2019

2020 2019

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED
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27,915  24,890

 1,871,342 
 2,120,201 

 416,166 
 113,868 

 50,636 
 -   

 183,201 
 -   

 1,376,048 
 7,033 

 530,395 
 6,197 
 9,411 

 178,308 
 791,559 

 7,654,365 

 2,513,565 
 1,625,192 

 267,482 
 94,205 

 101,705 
 639,689 
 337,224 
 136,147 
 869,083 

 6,394 
 530,514 

 1,881 
 -   

 168,197 
 768,476 

 8,059,754 

 325,587 
 186,091 

 (174,454)
 337,224 

 337,224 
 -   

 (154,023)
 183,201 

12.1

12.2
12.3

30.2

12.5

12.4

Provision for un-availed leaves
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12.4 (Payable to) / receivable from employees' gratuity fund

Present value of de�ned bene�t obligation
Fair value of plan assets
(Payable) / receivable 

2020 2019
Note

 (471,771)
 462,360 

 (9,411)

 (480,444)
 493,188 

 12,744 

12.4.1
12.4.2

12.4.4

12.4.5

12.4.1 Movement in de�ned bene�t obligation 

Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Bene�ts paid
Re-measurement gain on obligation
Obligation at the end of the year 

 480,444 
 74,431 
 59,587 

 (106,106)
 (36,585)
 471,771 

 468,333 
 75,258 
 38,241 

 (67,505)
 (33,883)
 480,444 

12.4.2 Movement in fair value of plan assets 

Fair value at the beginning of the year   
Expected return on plan assets   
Employer contributions   
Bene�ts paid on the behalf of the fund   
Bene�ts paid   
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on plan assets   
Fair value at the end of the year

 493,188 
 63,275 

 7,800 
 -   

 (106,106)
 4,203 

 462,360 

 -   
 21,637 

 527,800 
 20,535 

 (67,505)
 (9,279)

 493,188 

12.4.3 Movement in (payable) / receivable from employee's gratuity fund

Opening asset / (liability)
Employer contributions
Expense
Bene�ts paid on the behalf of the fund 
Re-measurement gain recognised in OCI
Closing (liability) / asset

 12,744 
 7,800 

 (70,743)
 -   

 40,788 
 (9,411)

 (468,333)
 527,800 
 (91,862)
 20,535 
 24,604 
 12,744 

12.4.4 Expense recognised in pro�t or loss during the year 

Current service cost   
Net interest on de�ned bene�t asset / (liability)

 74,431 
 (3,688)
 70,743 

 75,258 
 16,604 
 91,862 

12.4.5 Re-measurement gain / (loss) recognised in OCI during the year

Re-measurement gain on obligation   
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on fair value of plan assets

 36,585 
 4,203 

 40,788 

  33,883 
 (9,279)
 24,604 

12.4.6 Components of plan assets - unquoted   

Cash and bank 
Term deposit receipts 
Pakistan Investment Bonds 
Market Treasury Bills 

 1,456 
 -   

 289,283 
 171,621 
 462,360 

 5,422 
 10,012 

 165,059 
 312,695 
 493,188 
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12.4.9 Expected gratuity expense         

 Expected gratuity expense for the next �nancial year is Rs. 56.7 million (2019: Rs. 63.91 million). 

12.4.10 Risks associated with de�ned bene�t plan       

 Investment risks         

 The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus creating a shortfall in 
the funding objectives.         

 Longevity risks         

 The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retiree is longer than the estimate of future employee lifetime expectation. This 
risk is measured at the plan level over the entire retiree population.     

 Salary growth risk         

 The most common type of retirement bene�t is one where the bene�t is linked with �nal salary. The risk arises when the 
actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.   

 Withdrawal risk         

 The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the bene�t obligation. The 
movement of the liability can go either way.         

 The mortality rates are based on State Life Insurance Corporation (SLIC) 2001-05 ultimate mortality rate (2019: SLIC 
2001-05 ultimate mortality rate), rated down by one year.  

 The e�ective duration of the future cash �ows calculated based on yields available on government bonds works out to 
7.45 years (2019: 6.91 years).         

 Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other 
assumptions constant, would have a�ected the de�ned bene�t obligation by the amounts shown below:   
      

 Although the analysis does not take into account full distribution of cash �ows expected under the plan, it does provide 
an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.       
  

 (32,206)
 40,157 

 289 
 1,520 

 37,149 
 (35,328)

 (291)
 (1,587)

 (30,345)
 37,794 

 (275)
 1,512 

 34,871 
 (33,358)

 274 
 (1,577)
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12.4.7 Actuarial assumptions 

12.4.8 Sensitivity analysis 

Following signi�cant acturial assumptions were used at the reporting date:     

Discount rate per annum 
Salary increase rate (short term) 
Salary increase rate (long term) 
Withdrawal rates 

Discount rate (1% movement) 
Future salary growth (1% movement) 
Future mortality (1 year change) 
Withdrawal rate (10% movement)

2020

2020
Increase

(Rupees '000)

2020
Decrease

(Rupees '000)

2019
Increase

(Rupees '000)

2019
Decrease

(Rupees '000)

2019

8.50%
4% (Three years)

6.50%
Moderate

14.25%
10% (�ve years)

12.25%
Moderate
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13. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS  

12.5 This includes an amount of Rs. 716.05 million (2019: Rs. 699.31 million) including interest cost on account of estimated 
provision recorded up to 30 June 2020 pursuant to the decision of the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against 
compensation to the land owners for land acquired at Hattar plant. 

13.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 323.16 million (2019: Rs. 223.69 million) of markup accrued and represents short term �nance 
facilities obtained from various commercial banks with an aggregate limit of Rs. 20.10 billion (2019: Rs. 19.54 billion) including 
export re�nance facilities with an aggregate amount of Rs. 1.98 billion (2019: Rs. 2.18 billion). The short term �nance facilities 
carry mark-up at 1-month and 3-months KIBOR plus 0.02% to 1% and vary from bank to bank and export re�nance facilities 
carry mark-up at 2.05% to 3.0% per annum (2019: 3-month KIBOR plus 0.05% to 1% and export re�nance facilities at 2.05% to 
2.5% per annum). These facilities are secured by �rst pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future movable assets, 
current assets and �xed assets excluding land and building for an amount of Rs. 31.77 billion (2019: Rs. 24 billion) and ranking 
hypothecation charge on all present and future movable assets, current assets and �xed assets excluding land and building for 
an amount of Rs. 1.96 billion (2019: Rs. 6.86 billion). 

13.2 The Company has running �nance and other short term borrowing facilities aggregating to Rs. 9.71 billion (2019: Rs. 8.70 
billion) which remained un-availed at the year end.        

14.1.1.1 These include bank guarantees issued in the normal course of business to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited for commercial 
and industrial use of gas for an amount of Rs. 2.07 billion (2019: Rs. 1.73 billion).   

14.1.1.2 As at 30 June 2020, facilities of letters of guarantee amounting to Rs. 2.82 billion (2019: Rs. 2.66 billion) were available to the 
Company out of which Rs. 0.34 billion (2019: Rs. 0.51 billion) remained unavailed. Facilities of letters of guarantee are secured 
by �rst pari passu charge on present and future assets of the Company (excluding land and building).  

14.1.2 Litigations      

14.1.2.1 Writ Petition No.1540/1999 was �led by the Company (along with several other cement companies) in the Peshawar High Court, for 
declaration that Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Act, 1996 and the Pakistan Standards Institution (Certi�cation Mark) 
Ordinance, 1961 are ultra vires of the Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan and that the demand for the payment of marking 
fee at the rate of 0.15% is without lawful authority and of no legal e�ect and that Pakistan Standards & Quality Control Authority / 
Pakistan Standards Institution cannot use coercive measures to recover this fee. Furthermore, it was submitted that both Acts provide 
for levying of  ‘fee’ and not a tax. Fee cannot be exorbitant and the rate of 0.15% is unfair, exceeds the value of the service and has no 
nexus to the service provided by the respondents. This Writ Petition was dismissed by the Peshawar High Court vide judgment dated 
24 December 2009. The Company �led an appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan on 12 January 2010. No arguments 
have been presented as yet, however the Company will be vigorously contesting the case.     
   

Running �nance facilities from banking companies - secured  

Letters of guarantee issued by banks on behalf of the Company
   
Company's share of guarantees and claims of equity-accounted 
investees:    
- Guarantees    
- Other contingent liabilities    

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

14.1 Contingencies

14.1.1 Guarantees and claims

2020 2019

2020 2019

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

 10,710,748  10,835,368 

 2,482,627 

 
12,971,861 
 2,088,047 

 2,148,248 

 
14,183,753 
 2,077,784 

Note

14.1.1.1
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14.1.2.2 The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) issued a show cause notice dated 28 October 2008 under section 30 of the 
Competition Ordinance, 2007. On 27 August 2009, the CCP imposed a penalty aggregating Rs. 1.04 billion on the Company. The 
Company has challenged the CCP order in the Honourable High Court and the Honourable High Court has passed an interim 
order restraining the CCP from taking any adverse action against the parties. 

 Appeals against the CCP's orders were also �led as an abundant precaution in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan 
under Section 42 of the Competition Ordinance, 2007.      

 However, after the enactment of the Competition Act, 2010 in which the Competition Appellate Tribunal ("CAT") had been 
constituted, the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its Order dated 1 June 2017 sent the above appeals to CAT to 
decide the same in accordance with law. The �nal arguments of the case were concluded on 16 July 2020. The order is now 
reserved, however, the Company and its legal advisor are con�dent of a favourable outcome of the matter, accordingly no 
provision has been made in respect of same in the �nancial statements.      

14.1.2.3 In 2002, State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (an initial shareholder of Pakcem) �led two suits before the Honourable 
Sindh High Court against Mr. Khawaja Mohammad Jaweed (the then Chairman of the Chakwal Group, the previous parent of 
Pakcem) for recovery of an aggregate amount of Rs. 461 million plus markup (at rates ranging from 16% to 20%) on account of 
agreements of sale and repurchase of shares, executed at various times in August 1995, between State Life Insurance 
Corporation of Pakistan and the then Chairman of the Chakwal Group. Pakcem received a letter dated 03 September 2014 from 
Chakwal Group stating that Pakcem is also a party to the case and can be held liable to pay the damages by the Honourable 
Sindh High Court. The legal advisor of the Company is of the opinion that the Company can be extricated from the case, 
provided that it can be shown to the Court that the then Chairman of the Chakwal Group was not authorised to act in this 
regard on behalf of Pakcem. No provision has been made against the aforementioned case in these �nancial statements, as the 
management and its legal counsel are con�dent that the matter will ultimately be decided in favour of the Company.

14.1.2.4 Contingencies relating to sales tax and federal excise duty of the Company are as follows. Sales tax and excise duty 
contingencies of Pakcem, acquired by and subsequently amalgamated into the Company, are disclosed in note 14.1.2.5.

i) The Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I) [CIR (A)] while deciding the appeal  �led against the Order-in-Original No. 20 of 
2013 dated 07 May 2013 [the OIO] for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012 passed by the tax authority raising alleged aggregate 
demand of Rs.19.09 billion (including Rs. 3.33 billion relating to Mustehkam Cement Limited [MCL], which was amalgamated 
into the Company in 2013), remanded the case back to the tax authority by observing that the OIO is completely silent about 
the earlier judgment passed by the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal dated 30 April 2003 on the similar issue 
that the cement produced/sold by the Company was less than the quantity of cement worked out in standard mix of 95:5
(5 being gypsum). The Company is in appeal against the order of the CIR(A) which is pending disposal to date. On similar issue 
in a parallel case, the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue [the ATIR] has set aside the demand raised by the tax authority by 
observing that working out production on the basis of working back gypsum percentage should not be followed as there are 
many other ingredients required to produce cement.

 Further, taking up the reassessment proceedings, the tax authority passed the Order-in-Original No. 09/065 of 2014 dated
18 March 2013 [the Order] by following a completely di�erent view that the production of cement should be worked out at the 
rate of 98% of installed capacity for all years under review. Resultantly, an aggregate demand of Rs. 8.54 billion (including
Rs.1.56 billion related to MCL) against the Company was raised. Being aggrieved with this decision, the Company �led an 
appeal before the CIR(A) who upheld the treatment followed by the tax authority with modi�cation that instead of 98%, the 
capacity should be worked out on average production in parallel cases for the years. However, the tax authority has worked out 
production by applying a rate of 86.66% instead of 98%. As a result demand of Rs. 5.28 billion (including Rs. 0.92 billion related 
to MCL) along with default surcharge and penalty was raised. On appeal �led by the Company, the ATIR vide its order dated
02 September 2014, has annulled the orders of tax authority. The tax authority has �led reference before the Honourable 
Islamabad High Court against the appellate orders of the ATIR which is currently pending adjudication. 

ii) The tax authority conducted audit of sales tax a�airs of the Company for the year 2013 and consequently framed 
order-in-original No. 01 of 2015 dated 31 August 2015 through which a tax demand of Rs. 230.91 million was raised. Against the 
said order, the Company �led an appeal before the CIR(A), who upheld the impugned order. Being dissatis�ed with the order 
of the CIR(A) dated 13 April 2016, the Company �led an appeal before the ATIR who vacated the decision of CIR(A) and stated 
that the Company may prefer another appeal before the CIR(A) for the redressal of grievances against the assessment order, if 
any. Pursuant to the order of the ATIR dated 13 February 2018, the Company has �led a fresh appeal before the CIR(A) and 
reference before the Honourable Islamabad High Court (IHC). After initial hearing, the IHC, vide its order dated 30 May 2018 has 
admitted the reference and has directed that ‘status quo’ be maintained till the next date of hearing.    
        

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED
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iii)  Based on an audit for the period from July 2009 to June 2010, the tax authority vide Order-in-Original No. 23 of 2013 dated
30 April 2013 [the Order] raised aggregate sales tax demand of Rs. 639.17 million against the Company mainly alleging 
suppression of production. On appeal by the Company, the CIR(A) vide order dated 25 July 2013, set aside the order in original 
and directed the tax authority for denovo consideration. The Company has �led an appeal on 10 October 2013 before the ATIR 
against the order of the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.      

14.1.2.5 Contingencies relating to sales tax and federal excise duty of Pakcem, acquired by and subsequently amalgamated into the 
Company, are as follows:      

i)  For the tax period January 2007 to December 2007, the tax authority raised sales tax/federal excise duty demand of
Rs. 690 million vide order-in-original No.19 of 2011 dated 25 October 2011. Pakcem �led an appeal against the said order 
before the CIR(A). The CIR(A) endorsed the view of the tax authority, but reduced the demand to Rs. 489 million. Pakcem �led 
an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] against the order of the CIR(A) and ATIR, vide its order dated
30 March 2012, set aside the orders of the CIR(A) and directed the tax authority for denovo consideration. Pakcem then �led 
an appeal before the Honourable Islamabad High Court against the order of the ATIR. Meanwhile, as directed by the ATIR, the 
tax authority vide its re-assessment order dated 31 October 2012 again raised a demand of Rs. 489 million. Pakcem �led an 
appeal before the CIR(A) against the aforementioned order of the tax authority. The CIR(A) vide its order dated 20 December 
2012 remanded back the order of the tax authority for re-assessment. Pakcem has also �led an appeal before the ATIR against 
the order of the CIR (A), which is pending adjudication. Further, as directed by the CIR(A), the matter is also pending for 
adjudication with the tax authority. To date no order has been passed.      

14.1.2.6 Certain matters other than those disclosed in these �nancial statements, are pending in di�erent Courts of law. The 
management is of the view that the outcome of those is expected to be favourable and a liability, if any, arising at the 
conclusion of those cases is not likely to be material.      

 Pending the outcome of the matters as discussed in notes from 14.1.2.4 to 14.1.2.6, no provision has been made in these 
�nancial statements as management is con�dent that the matters will ultimately be decided in favour of the Company. 
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14.2 Commitments

14.2.1 As at 30 June 2020, facilities of letters of credit amounting to Rs. 10.1 billion (2019: Rs. 8.31 billion) are available to the 
Company, out of which Rs. 8.97 billion (2019: Rs. 6.01 billion) remained unavailed.

Outstanding letters of credit including capital expenditure  
Capital expenditure  
Implementation of ERP  
Rentals for use of land  
  
Company's share of commitments of equity-accounted investees:  

- Letters of credit  
- Forward foreign exchange contracts  
- Forward government securities transactions  
- Derivatives  
- Forward lending  
- Capital expenditure  
- Operating leases  

2020 2019

 1,129,651 
 188,585 

 -   
 123,437 

 
8,892,109 

 48,655,105 
 73,249 
 48,568 

 8,158,723 
 36,024 
 14,257 

 2,298,855 
 121,697 

 30,240 
 124,792 

 
15,233,261 

 59,157,308 
 6,073,361 

 152,520 
 11,415,461 

 73,810 
 -  

Note

15.1

15.2

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 Operating �xed assets

 Capital work in progress
    56,886,395 

 355,691 

 57,242,086 

    54,245,747 

 1,543,722 

 55,789,469 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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15.1.2 The details of �xed assets sold during the year, having net book value in excess of Rs. 500,000 each are as follows:

Pre-heater cyclone
Vehicle (DY-325)
Vehicle (AHE-358)
Excavator
Vehicle (AAC-107)
Vehicle (AMD-165)
Vehicle (AKY-960)
Vehicle (AED-338)
Vehicle (ALY-410)
Vehicle (ADJ-934)
Vehicle (ADJ-938)
Vehicle (AFC-370)
Vehicle (AEH-706)
Vehicle (ADV-328)
Vehicle (FK-958)
Vehicle (AFH-547)
Vehicle (AFX-242)
Vehicle (AFX-241)
Vehicle (AGB-642)
Vehicle (AGC-561)
Vehicle (AEA-627)
Vehicle (TW-138)
Vehicle (KJ-701)
Vehicle (TU-344)
Vehicle (DW-721)
Vehicle (FK-719)
Vehicle (FK-852)
Excavator
Vehicle (CG-504)
Vehicle (CG-605)
Vehicle (CG-584)
Vehicle (CG-494)
Vehicle (AHT-309)
Vehicle (AAU-385)
Vehicle (AEG-427)
Vehicle (CG-487)
Dump truck
Dozer
Vehicle (ABY-483)
Vehicle (AFC-968)
Vehicle (TS-598)
Vehicle (ADG-235)
Vehicle (EG-387)
Vehicle (FD-673)
Loader
Vehicle (ABY-482)
Vehicle (ABY-477)
Vehicle (CB-680)

 175,007 
 30,256 
 13,351 

 3,328 
 5,324 
 3,079 
 2,966 
 3,987 
 2,394 
 3,513 
 3,513 
 2,387 
 2,347 
 2,452 
 3,602 
 2,342 
 2,317 
 1,586 
 1,583 
 1,574 
 1,555 
 1,859 
 1,050 
 2,415 
 1,908 
 2,347 
 2,347 
 2,567 
 1,648 
 1,646 
 1,646 
 1,646 
 1,271 
 1,714 
 1,247 
 1,646 
 2,073 
 1,996 
 1,148 
 1,074 
 1,833 
 1,147 
 1,696 
 1,565 
 1,569 
 1,153 
 1,153 
 1,583 

 165,522 
 11,381 

 8,117 
 3,328 
 2,502 
 2,400 
 2,185 
 2,000 
 1,902 
 1,739 
 1,739 
 1,653 
 1,652 
 1,543 
 1,439 
 1,424 
 1,309 
 1,202 
 1,201 
 1,018 

 993 
 983 
 981 
 979 
 967 
 938 
 920 
 862 
 850 
 848 
 834 
 819 
 786 
 762 
 747 
 702 
 696 
 670 
 627 
 607 
 581 
 568 
 556 
 545 
 527 
 522 
 521 
 513 

  162,035 
 12,600 

 8,321 
 3,328 
 2,502 
 2,400 
 2,185 
 2,895 
 2,182 
 3,409 
 3,409 
 2,430 
 1,866 
 1,543 
 2,866 
 2,310 
 2,010 
 1,875 
 1,925 
 1,874 
 2,012 
 1,058 

 373 
 1,583 
 1,825 
 1,656 
 1,867 
 4,273 

 976 
 848 
 980 
 819 

 1,500 
 1,800 
 1,206 
 2,285 
 1,909 
 4,455 

 915 
 1,200 
 1,523 
 1,155 

 820 
 912 

 1,350 
 916 
 826 

 1,475

  (3,487)
 1,219 

 204 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 895 
 280 

 1,670 
 1,670 

 777 
 214 
 -   

 1,427 
 886 
 701 
 673 
 724 
 856 

 1,019 
 75 

 (608)
 604 
 858 
 718 
 947 

 3,411 
 126 
 -   
 146 
 -   
 714 

 1,038 
 459 

 1,583 
 1,213 
 3,785 

 288 
 593 
 942 
 587 
 264 
 367 
 823 
 394 
 305 
 962 

Insurance claim
Auction
Auction
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Negotiation
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Negotiation
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Auction
Negotiation
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Negotiation
Negotiation
Auction
Auction
Negotiation
Auction
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Auction

 Syndicate Insurance claim 
Naveed Ahmed Khan
Mehboob Alam
Ja�er Brothers
 S.Asif Shah - Employee
Ghulam Sarwar Malik - Employee
Ghulam Sarwar Malik - Employee
Niaz Ahmed Khan
Shahid Jamil
Al-Afzal Associates 
Afzal Transport
Kaleem Ashraf - Employee
Muhammad Basharat
 S.Asif Shah - Employee
Mr. Abrar Hussain 
Arslan Ahmed Khan
Zafar Abbas
Augmentech Business Solution
Augmentech Business Solution
Syed Hassan Raza
Augmentech Business Solution
Anjum Shikoh Qazi
Col Tahir Sha� - Employee
Mr. Mekail
Augmentech Business Solution
Zafar Abbas
Muhammad Shah
Qadar Dad Khan
Naeem ul Haq - Employee
Shaukat Naqvi - Employee
Ijaz Malik - Employee
Ahmed Aziz Baloach - Employee
Muhammad Tariq Saleem
Augmentech Business Solution
Umair Qadeer
Augmentech Business Solution
Qadar Dad Khan
Qadar Dad Khan
Mohammad Imran Pervaiz
Augmentech Business Solution
Mr. Arshad Qayyum
Augmentech Business Solution
Mr. Shabbir Ahmed - Employee
Zaigham Abbass - Employee
Sartaj Khan
Sohail Satti - Employee
Rashid Mehmood - Employee
Augmentech  Business Solution
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15.1.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of the Company are as follows: 

15.1.4 Land measuring 206 kanals and 14 marlas located at Farooqia plant was purchased with the funds of the Company from
Mr. Faqeer Muhammad in 2008 at the cost of Rs. 12.51 million but is not in the possession of the Company.  

Suraj Gali Road, Village Shadi, Hattar, District 
Haripur, KPK.  

12 km, Taxila-Haripur Road, Farooqia, District 
Haripur, KPK.  

Village Tatral, Near PSO Petrol Pump, 22 km Kallar 
Kahar, District Chakwal.  

Choie Mallot Road, Tehsil Kallar Kahar, District 
Chakwal.  

19-A, College Road, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad.  

Location Usage of immovable
property

Total area

Production Plant

Production Plant

Production Plant

Production Plant

Head o�ce Building

 4,133.48 Kanals 

 5,027.45 Kanals 

 8,935.05 Kanals

8,027.10 Kanals

 533.33 Sq. Yards

15.1.5 Allocation of depreciation charge
 
 Cost of sales  

 Selling and distribution expenses  

 Administrative expenses  

  2,968,005 

 18,932 

 30,636 

 3,017,573 

 

 2,892,757 

 17,462 

 28,463 

 2,938,682 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)Note

15.2.1

15.2.2

15.2 Capital work in progress  
 
 Opening balance  
 Additions during the year  
   
  
 Transferred to operating �xed assets:  
 Buildings on freehold land  
 Plant and machinery  
 Furniture and �xtures  
 O�ce equipment  
 Laboratory and other equipment  
  
 Balance at the end of the year  

 

 355,691 
 1,592,549 
 1,948,240 

 (14,799)
 (346,595)

 -   
 (43,124)

 -   
 (404,518)

 1,543,722  

 

 1,454,471 
 3,043,796 
 4,498,267 

 (1,270,309)
 (2,783,280)

 (2,295)
 (17,281)
 (69,411)

 (4,142,576)
 355,691 

15.2.1 This includes borrowing cost capitalised amounting to Rs. 19.20 million (2019: Rs. 60.65 million) calculated at an average 
rate of 12.95% (2019: 7.03%) per annum.
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15.2.2 Break up of capital work in progress at the year end is as follows:      

Note

16.2
16.3
16.4

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL   

 Computer software
 Brands
 Goodwill

 123,262 
 524,920 

 7,062,111 
 7,710,293 

  97,952 
 634,091 

 7,062,111 
 7,794,154 

Plant and machinery and other equipment 
Civil development works including borrowing cost
Laboratory and other equipment  
Vehicles    

 1,423,928 
 119,794 

 -   
 -   

 1,543,722 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

 179,141 
 100,364 

 73,755 
 2,431 

 355,691 

 Balance at 01 July 2018

 Amortisation

 Balance at 30 June 2019

 Balance at 01 July 2019

 Amortisation

 Balance at 30 June 2020

16.1 Reconciliation of carrying amounts

 Accumulated amortisation 

 Cost

 Balance at 01 July 2018

 Additions

 Balance at 30 June 2019

 Balance at 01 July 2019

 Additions

 Balance at 30 June 2020

--------------------------------------- (Rupees '000) -------------------------------------

Computer
software

(note 16.2)

Brands 
(note 16.3)

Goodwill 
(note 16.4)

Total

 
 8,227,170 

 98,641 

 8,325,811 

 8,325,811 

 39,162 

 8,364,973 

 7,062,111 

 -   

 7,062,111 

 7,062,111 

 -   

 7,062,111 

 1,091,712 

 -   

 1,091,712 

 1,091,712 

 -   

 1,091,712 

  73,347 

 98,641 

 171,988 

  171,988 

 39,162 

 211,150 

  410,268 

 121,389 

 531,657 

 531,657 

 123,023 

 654,680  

 -   

 -   

 -   

  -   

 -   

 -   

 348,450 

 109,171 

 457,621 

 457,621 

 109,171 

 566,792 

 61,818 

 12,218 

 74,036  

  74,036 

 13,852 

 87,888 

 Carrying amounts

 At 30 June 2019

 At 30 June 2020

 7,794,154 

 7,710,293 

 - 

 - 

 634,091 

 524,920 

  97,952 

 123,262 

 Useful life (years)    

 2019

 2020

 - 
 - 

 10 years 

 10 years 

6.66 years

6.66 years
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16.2 Computer software       

 Additions during the year of Rs. 39.16 million (2019: Rs. 78.8 million) relate to purchase of an ERP system, implementation 
of which was completed in November 2019.     

16.3 Brands

 This represents intangible assets in the form of Brands on acquisition of Pakcem and re�ects the expected economic 
bene�ts to the Company from the retention di�erential of those Brands. The value of Brands has been determined 
on the basis of incremental cash �ows to be generated from retention of those brands which the Company intends 
to use. Management has estimated useful life of the Brands to be ten years starting from the date of acquisition.

16.4 Goodwill          

 This represents excess of the amount paid over fair value of net assets of Pakcem Limited on its acquisition on
22 April 2015. The carrying amount of goodwill is tested for impairment annually based on its value in use, 
determined by discounting the future cash �ows to be generated by cement plant (CGU) acquired from Pakcem.

The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of capital.       

The cash �ow projections include speci�c estimates for �ve years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal 
growth rate is determined based on management’s estimate of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rate, 
consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would make.    

Budgeted growth is based on expectations of future outcomes taking into account past experience, adjusted for 
anticipated revenue growth. Revenue growth is projected taking into account the average growth levels experienced 
in the recent years and the estimated sales volume and price growth for the next �ve years.    

The estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeds its carrying amount. The Company estimates that reasonably 
possible changes in these assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of the CGU to decline below the 
carrying amount.      

2020 2019

 Discount rate (Pre-tax)
 Terminal value growth rate 

14.5%
4%

19%
4.5%

 Cost of sales  
 Selling and distribution expenses  
 Administrative expenses  
  

  13,852 
 109,171 

 -   
 123,023 

  8,251 
 109,171 

 3,967 
 121,389 

16.5 Allocation of amortisation

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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Note

17.1

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year
 Change in fair value
 Balance at the end of the year

  262,349 
 3,726 

 266,075 

 

 257,656 
 4,693 

 262,349 

17.1 The investment property is a portion of the Company's head o�ce building in Islamabad held for letting. An 
independent exercise was carried out to determine the fair value of investment property. To assess the land and 
building prices, market survey was carried out in the vicinity of the investment property. Fair value of the 
investment property is based on independent valuer's judgment about average prices and has been prepared on 
openly available/provided information after making relevant inquiries from the market. Valuation was carried out 
by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional quali�cation and has recent 
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. Forced sale value of the 
investment property amounts to Rs. 239.46 million (2019: Rs. 236.11 million).   

 
 The investment property is placed in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Since the value has been determined by a 

third party and inputs are not observable, sensitivity analysis has not been presented.

Note

18.1
18.2

18. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
 
 Investment in associated companies
 - United Bank Limited
 - UBL Insurers Limited 

 

 13,479,425 
 208,405 

 13,687,830 

 

 12,329,518 
 182,521 

 12,512,039 

18.1 Investment in United Bank Limited - equity-accounted investee  

 As at 30 June 2020, the Company holds 93,649,744 (30 June 2019: 93,649,744) ordinary shares in United Bank 
Limited 'UBL', a leading commercial bank in Pakistan with its registered o�ce situated in Islamabad, Pakistan. The 
Company's shareholding in UBL constitutes 7.65% (2019: 7.65%) of total ordinary shares of UBL. UBL's ordinary 
shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. UBL is treated as an 'associate' due to the Company's 
signi�cant in�uence over it by virtue of common directorship and being a group company.   
    

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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18.1.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year

 Company's share of associate's pro�t for the year 
 Company's share of associate's:   
 -  re-measurement of de�ned bene�t liability 
 - change in exchange translation reserve 
 - re-measurement of available-for-sale investments  
 
 Less: Dividends received
 Balance at the end of the year  

   12,329,518 

 1,638,579 

 (197,004)
 33,689 

 798,440 
 635,125 

 (1,123,797)
 13,479,425 

 

  11,222,845 

 1,416,975 

 23,390 
 1,119,622 
 (469,992)
 673,020 

 (983,322)
 12,329,518 

18.1.2 The following table summarises the �nancial information of UBL as included in its un-audited consolidated condensed 
interim �nancial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The information relating to revenue, pro�t and 
other comprehensive income also include amounts for the six months ended 31 December 2019. The �nancial 
year-end of UBL is 31 December.       

 Percentage of ownership (%)  
   
 Total assets   

 Total liabilities   

 Net assets   

 Non-controlling interests   

 Net assets attributable to ordinary shareholders (100%)   

 Company's share of net assets (7.65%)   

 Goodwill   

 Carrying amount of interest in associate   

   

 Mark-up / return / interest earned for the year   

 Pro�t after tax (100%)   

 Company's share of net pro�t for the year (7.65%)   

   

 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):   

       - Re-measurement (loss) / gain of de�ned bene�t liability  

       - Change in exchange reserve   

       - Change in surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale investments  

 Total OCI (100%)   

 Company's share of OCI (7.65%)  

7.65%

2,126,456,669 
 (1,955,901,299)

 170,555,370 
 (6,950,781)

 163,604,589 
 12,515,751 

 963,674 
 13,479,425 

177,375,733 
 21,419,327 

 1,638,579 

(2,575,216)
 440,379 

 10,437,124 
 8,302,287 

 635,125 

7.65%

 2,043,131,886 

 (1,887,697,886)

 155,434,000 

 (6,860,875)

 148,573,125 

 11,365,844 

 963,674 

 12,329,518 

 129,446,667 

 18,522,551 

 1,416,975 

 305,752 

 14,635,582 

 (6,143,686)

 8,797,648 

 673,020 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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18.1.3 Cost of investment in UBL amounted to Rs. 1.86 billion (2019: Rs. 1.86 billion). Market value of investment in UBL as 
at 30 June 2020 was Rs. 9.68 billion (2019: Rs. 13.8 billion). Management believes that only decline in market value 
of UBL, is not of itself evidence of impairment. There is no other objective evidence / observable data which may 
indicate impairment of investment in UBL. The investment in UBL is placed in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. 
           

18.2 Investment in UBL Insurers Limited - equity-accounted investee   

 As at 30 June 2020, the Company holds 14,088,199 (30 June 2019: 14,088,199) ordinary shares in UBL Insurers 
Limited 'UIL', an unlisted public company engaged in insurance business with its registered o�ce situated in 
Karachi, Pakistan. The Company's shareholding in UIL constitutes 12.23% (2019: 12.23%) of total ordinary shares of 
UIL. UIL is treated as an 'associate' due to the Company's signi�cant in�uence over it by virtue of common 
directorship and being a group company.

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

18.2.2 The following table summarises the �nancial information of UIL as included in its un-audited condensed interim 
�nancial information for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The information relating to revenue, pro�t and other 
comprehensive income also include amounts for the six months ended 31 December 2019. The �nancial year-end 
of UIL is 31 December.       

18.2.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

 Percentage of ownership (%)
 
 Total assets   

 Total liabilities   

 Net assets   

   

 Company's share of net assets (12.23%)   

 Carrying amount of interest in associate   

   

 Net insurance premium for the year   

 Pro�t after tax for the year   

 Company's share of net pro�t for year (12.23%)   

   

 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):   

        - Re-measurement gain / (loss) of de�ned bene�t liability   

        - Change in surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale investments  

 Total OCI (100%)   

 Company's share of OCI (12.23%)   

12.23%

 5,810,921 
 (4,106,528)
 1,704,393 

 208,405 
 208,405 

 3,440,641 
 266,233 

 32,554 

 188 
 6,836 
 7,024 

 859 

12.23%

 4,861,316 

 (3,368,610)

 1,492,706 

 182,521 

 182,521 

 2,912,169 

 303,625 

 37,126 

 (540)

 (4,350)

 (4,890)

 (598)

18.2.3 Cost of investment in UIL amounted to Rs. 106.27 million (2019: Rs. 106.27 million). 
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20.1 This includes stock in transit amounting to Rs. 6.25 million (2019: Rs. 2.89 million).    

Note

19.1

19. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS 
 
 Stores, spare parts and loose tools   
 Stores and spare parts in transit
 
 Less: Provision for obsolete spare parts   

 

 5,824,427 
 1,256,258 
 7,080,685 

 (70,530)
 7,010,155  

 

 4,937,228 
 573,982 

 5,511,210 
 -   

 5,511,210 

20.2 Movement in provision for slow moving stock   

 Balance at the beginning of the year 
 Reversal of provision 
 Balance at the end of the year 

 

 42,773 
 (7,716)

 35,057 

 

 43,173 
 (400)

 42,773 

20.1

20.2

20. STOCK IN TRADE 
 
 Raw and packing material 
 Work in process 
 Finished goods 
 
 Less: Provision for slow moving stock   

 

 324,131 
 1,422,506 

 579,893 
 2,326,530 

 (35,057)
 2,291,473 

 504,315 
 1,638,538 

 589,363 
 2,732,216 

 (42,773)
 2,689,443 

19.1 Movement in provision for obsolete stores 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year 
 Provision / (reversal) for the year 
 Balance at the end of the year 

  -   
 70,530 
 70,530 

  6,482 
 (6,482)

 -   

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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21.1 This includes Rs. 58.99 million (2019: Rs: 93.46 million) receivable from customers against export sales.

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note
2020

(Rupees '000)
2019

(Rupees '000)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

21.1

21.2

21. TRADE DEBTS  
 
 Trade debts - unsecured   
     -Considered good  
  -Considered doubtful   
   
 Less: Provision against doubtful trade debts

 

 1,727,790 
 8,135 

 1,735,925 
 (8,135)

 1,727,790 

 

 2,101,856 
 2,935 

 2,104,791 
 (2,935)

 2,101,856 

21.2 Movement in provision against doubtful trade debts 
  
 Balance at the beginning of the year 
 Provision for the year 
 Balance at the end of the year 

  2,935 
 5,200 
 8,135 

 

 2,935 
 -   

 2,935 

Note

22. ADVANCES  
 
 Advances to employees and executives - secured   
 Advances to suppliers and contractors - secured   
  

 

 19,413 
 156,511 
 175,924 

  13,395 
 394,376 
 407,771 

23. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 
 
 Security deposits 
 Short-term prepayments    

  9,550 
 14,907 
 24,457 

 

 18,126 
 8,736 

 26,862 

24.1

24.2

24.3

24.4

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES   
 
 Excise duty   
 Receivable from Lafarge S.A.   
 Sales tax   
 Receivable from employees' gratuity fund  
 Receivable from Workers' Pro�t Participation Fund   
 Others     

 

 615,146 
 8,847 
 1,823 

 -   
 5,365 

 210,519 
 841,700 

  615,146 
 8,847 

 -   
 12,744 

 -   
 4,353 

 641,090 
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24.3 Receivable from / (payable to) Workers' Pro�t Participation Fund  
        
 Balance at the beginning of the year   
 Allocation for the year   
 Payments to the Fund during the year   
 Receivable / (payable) balance at the end of the year    

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

24.2 Payable to employees' gratuity fund amounting to Rs. 9.41 million has been classi�ed as a current liability in Trade 
and other payables as at 30 June 2020 (refer note 12.4).

25.1 This includes Rs. 338.68 million (2019: Rs. 363.89 million) held in current accounts maintained with UBL, a related 
party. Maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year amounted to Rs. 338.68 million 
(2019: Rs. 379.78 million).

24.4 This includes an amount of Rs. 55 million (2019: Rs. Nil) receivable from MAP Rice Mills (Pvt.) Limited, a related 
party, on account of management fee charged. This also includes Rs. 62 million (2019: Rs. Nil) insurance claim 
receivable and Rs. 81 million (2019: Rs. Nil) as compensation from supplier.

         

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

24.1 This represents claim �led by the Company for Rs. 615.15 million relating to excise duty paid on sales during the 
period from June 1998 to April 1999 which, pursuant to the decisions of the Honourable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan, detailed below, was otherwise not leviable and payable under the law. The Commissioner Appeals 
rejected the claim of Rs. 211.15 million pertaining to the Company (excluding Mustehkam Cement Limited) and 
the Company �led an appeal with Appellate Tribunal against unlawful rejection of refund claims. ATIR vide the 
order dated 17 March 2020 has set aside the impugned orders and has directed the Department to refund the 
claim �led by the Company. Subsequent to the year end, Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR) �led a reference 
against the order before the Honourable Islamabad High Court  u/s 34A of the Federal Excise Act, 2005.   Further, 
on refund claim of Mustehkam Cement Limited (amalgamated with the Company) of Rs. 404 million, tax 
authorities held the proceedings in abeyance awaiting result of litigation pertaining to the Company's refund 
claim. Management and the Company's legal advisor believe that the Company's claim is valid and the amount is 
fully recoverable, accordingly no provision has been made in the �nancial statements.  

 The matter in dispute is whether excise duty be levied on retail price inclusive of excise duty or retail price 
exclusive of excise duty. The Federal Board of Revenue's (FBR) point of view was that excise duty be calculated on 
declared retail price inclusive of excise duty whereas the concerned respondents disagreed with that 
interpretation. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan in its judgment dated 14 April 2007 in a comparable 
case for levy of excise duty, dismissed the appeal �led by the FBR and upheld the decisions made by the 
honourable High Courts of Peshawar, Sindh and Punjab. The FBR moved a review petition before the Honourable 
Supreme Court of Pakistan which to date is pending.

 

 (639,689)
 -   

 645,054 
 5,365 

 

  (752,931)
 (623,964)
 737,206 

 (639,689)

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 
 Cash at banks: 
    in current accounts
    in deposit accounts   

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)Note

25.1

25.2

 
 347,578 

 113 
 347,691 

 347,691 

  458,355 
 4,557 

 462,912 

 462,912 
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25.1.1 Current accounts include balances amounting to Rs. 3.19 million (2019: Rs. 41.25 million) held in US Dollar accounts.

25.2 Deposit accounts carried pro�t rates ranging from 6.5% to 11.25% (2019: 4.5% to 10.25%) per annum during the year.

25.3 Following completion of acquisition process of Pakcem by the Company, the balances of Pakcem with Lafarge S.A. 
(previous parent entity of Pakcem) and its a�liates as of 21 April 2015 were agreed between the Company and Lafarge 
S.A and transferred to an escrow account maintained with Citi Bank N.A, pursuant to the Escrow Agreement dated 21 
April 2015 between the Company, Lafarge S.A. and CitiBank N.A. According to the agreement, the transferred funds will 
be utilised exclusively for payments to Lafarge S.A. from time to time and the Company will be entitled only to the 
balance left in the escrow account after completion of payments to Lafarge S.A. Accordingly, the amount in escrow 
account and payable balances aggregating to Rs.140.89 million (2019: Rs.140.89 million) relating to Lafarge S.A. and its 
a�liates have been netted o� in these �nancial statements till �nal settlement of the escrow account.

27. COST OF SALES 
 
 Raw and packing materials consumed 
 Fuel and power 
 Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 
 Repairs and maintenance 
 Salaries, wages and bene�ts 
 Support services 
 Rent, rates and taxes 
 Insurance 
 Equipment rental 
 Utilities 
 Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 
 Communication 
 Printing and stationery 
 Entertainment 
 Depreciation 
 Amortisation 
 Reversal of provision for slow moving stock 
 Provision / (reversal of provision) for obsolete stores 
 Legal and professional charges 
 Fees and subscriptions 
 Other manufacturing expenses 
 
 Opening work in process 
 Closing work in process 
 Cost of goods manufactured 

 Opening �nished goods stock 
 Closing �nished goods stock 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

 
   61,795,395 

 1,892,359 
 63,687,754 

 

 74,957,992 
 4,042,322 

 79,000,314 

Note

27.1

27.2

15.1.5

16.5

 

 6,482,774 
 22,339,075 

 996,707 
 162,037 

 1,613,948 
 732,593 

 12,981 
 48,179 
 82,616 
 41,519 

 121,417 
 10,844 

 9,717 
 13,163 

 2,968,005 
 13,851 
 (7,716)

 70,530 
 5,290 

 52,175 
 16,785 

 35,786,490 
 1,638,538 

 (1,422,506)
 36,002,522 

 589,363 
 (579,893)

 36,011,992 

 

 6,493,590 
 21,548,454 

 1,350,772 
 298,354 

 1,964,424 
 753,547 

 11,811 
 45,806 

 145,473 
 267,741 
 136,720 

 13,649 
 10,945 
 19,487 

 2,892,757 
 8,251 

 (400)
 (6,482)

 26,439 
 16,225 
 17,197 

 36,014,760 
 3,090,185 

 (1,638,538)
 37,466,407 

 679,508 
 (589,363)

 37,556,552 
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2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

27.1 Raw and packing materials consumed 
 
 Opening stock 
 Purchases / expenditures during the year 
 Closing stock 

 

 504,315 
 6,302,590 

 (324,131)
 6,482,774 

  631,560 
 6,366,345 

 (504,315)
 6,493,590 

27.2 Salaries, wages and bene�ts include provision for employee retirement bene�ts amounting to Rs. 58.6 million 
(2019: Rs. 67.4 million).         

28.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 55 million (2019: Rs. Nil) on account of management fee charged to MAP Rice Mills 
(Pvt.) Limited, a related party.       

Note

17

28.1

28. OTHER INCOME
 
 Income from �nancial assets
 Pro�t on deposit accounts
 Exchange (loss) / gain

 Income from non-�nancial assets 
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 Compensation from Supplier 
 Rental income 
 Disposal of waste materials 
 Change in fair value of investment property 

 Others
 Others

  
    1,293 
 (1,658)

 (365)

 67,218 
 81,175 
 34,073 

 1,246 
 3,726 

 187,438 

 60,545 
 60,545 

 247,618 

 

 538 
 60,881 
 61,419 

 18,605 
 -   

 31,189 
 4,954 
 4,693 

 59,441 

 1,351 
 1,351 

 122,211 
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Note

29.1

15.1.5

16.5

29. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 
 
 Salaries, wages and bene�ts 
 Support services 
 Freight and handling - local 
 Freight and handling - export 
 Rent, rates and taxes 
 Repairs and maintenance 
 Utilities 
 Travelling, conveyance and subsistence 
 Communication 
 Printing and stationery 
 Entertainment 
 Advertising and promotion 
 Depreciation 
 Amortisation 
 Provision for doubtful debts 
 Fees and subscriptions 
 Others 

   145,704 
 3,231 

 301,608 
 110,388 

 17,997 
 2,404 
 4,405 

 20,438 
 4,047 
 1,196 
 3,160 

 15,419 
 18,932 

 109,171 
 5,200 

 28,344 
 2,569 

 794,213 

 

 186,198 
 4,114 

 389,782 
 467,290 

 16,328 
 6,574 
 4,300 

 27,491 
 6,877 
 3,132 

 11,404 
 29,390 
 17,462 

 109,171 
 -   

 56,012 
 3,561 

 1,339,086 

29.1 Salaries, wages and bene�ts include provision for employee retirement bene�ts amounting to Rs. 3.9 million
(2019: Rs. 8.2 million).       

Note

30.1

30.2

30.3
15.1.5
16.5

30. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
 
 Salaries, wages and bene�ts
 Rent, rates and taxes
 Repairs and maintenance
 Insurance
 Utilities
 Travelling, conveyance and subsistence
 Communication
 Printing and stationery
 Entertainment
 Advertisements
 Welfare activities
 Donations
 Legal and professional charges
 Fees and subscriptions
 Auditors' remuneration
 Depreciation
 Amortisation
 Others

 

 337,579 
 9,362 

 17,797 
 1,730 

 16,236 
 36,291 
 11,226 

 3,399 
 4,112 
 1,603 
 1,517 
 3,313 

 16,345 
 64,773 

 4,280 
 30,636 

 -   
 19,109 

 579,308 

 

 337,722 
 9,238 

 21,343 
 1,733 

 11,989 
 45,584 
 10,052 

 7,037 
 10,077 

 457 
 1,888 

 104,143 
 52,467 
 37,509 

 3,900 
 28,463 

 3,967 
 23,842 

 711,411 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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30.1 Salaries, wages and bene�ts include provision for employee retirement bene�ts amounting to Rs. 13.10 million 
(2019: Rs. 15.33 million).        

30.2 These include a donation of Rs. 1 million (2019: Rs. 1 million) made to Pakistan Hindu Council and a provision of
Rs. 0.49 million (2019: Rs. 100.97 million) made for donation to Bestway Foundation. The Chief Executive O�cer and 
the following directors are among the trustees of the Foundation:     

 - Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez       
 - Zameer Mohammed Choudrey
 - M. Younus Sheikh         
 - M. Irfan A. Sheikh       

 None of the directors of the Company or their spouses have a bene�cial interest in Bestway Foundation.  
     

30.3 Auditors' remuneration
 
 Statutory audit fee (including reporting to group auditors)
 Half year review   
 Certi�cation for regulatory purposes   
 Out of pocket expenses   

 3,000 
 550 
 430 
 300 

 4,280 

 2,685 
 515 
 430 
 270 

 3,900 

Note

12.5

31. OTHER EXPENSES
 
 Workers' Welfare Fund 
 Workers' Pro�t Participation Fund 
 Interest expense on land compensation 

  
 -   
 -   

 16,743 
 16,743 

  
  186,091 
 623,964 

 16,697 
 826,752 

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

32. FINANCE COST
 
 Mark-up on long term �nancing 
 Mark-up on syndicate long term �nancing 
 Mark-up on syndicate musharaka 
 Mark-up on short term borrowings 
 Bank charges and commissions

  
  158,088 
 226,878 
 151,758 

 1,585,175 
 29,802 

 2,151,701 

  
   -   

 442,246 
 294,324 
 728,623 

 33,280 
 1,498,473 

18.1.1

18.2.1

33. SHARE OF PROFIT OF EQUITY-ACCOUNTED 
 INVESTEES-NET OF TAX    
 United Bank Limited
 UBL Insurers Limited

     
1,638,579 

 32,554
 1,671,133 

  
    

1,416,975 
 37,126 

 1,454,101 
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34. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) / CHARGE

34.2  Income tax assessments of the Company for certain tax years are pending at various levels. The management is 
con�dent of a favourable outcome.        

34.2.1 Status of the Company's tax assessments is as follows. Income tax matters of Mustehkam Cement Limited 'MCL' 
and Pakcem, acquired by and subsequently amalgamated into the Company, are disclosed in notes 34.2.2 and 
34.2.3 respectively. 

 i) The tax authority amended the assessment of the Company for the Tax Year 2009 vide order dated 14 June 2010  thereby 
disallowing donation, salaries and wages, rent and rebate & discounts amounting to Rs. 686.33 million, which was 
however, set o� against brought forward business losses. On appeal by the Company, the CIR(A) decided the issues in 
favour of the Company except disallowance of deductions claimed on account of donations. The Company as well as the 
tax authority have �led cross appeals with the ATIR on the issues not decided in their favour by the CIR(A). The ATIR has 
partially maintained and partially remanded back the case to the tax authority, and being dissatis�ed with the order of 
the ATIR, the Company has �led reference before the Honourable Islamabad High Court, which is pending adjudication.

 ii) Income tax assessments of the Company for the Tax Years 2010 to 2012 were amended on 9 July 2013 on alleged 
concealment of sales by working back production taking gypsum consumed as �ve per cent of cement produced and 
raising tax demand of Rs. 16.97 billion (including Rs. 2.10 billion relating to MCL). On appeal by the Company, the CIR(A) 
cancelled the assessments for the Tax Years 2010 and 2011 and set aside the assessment for the Tax Year 2012 for denovo 
consideration. Being dissatis�ed with the order of the CIR(A), the Company has �led second appeal before the ATIR for 
Tax Year 2012. 

34.1 Amounts recognised in pro�t or loss

 Current tax (credit) / charge

 -   for the year

 -   for prior year

 Deferred tax (credit) / charge

 Tax (credit) / charge for the year

 

 722,298 
 (467,192)
 255,106 
 (810,838)
 (555,732)

  
    2,918,327 
 (1,336,707)
 1,581,620 
 1,566,645 
 3,148,265 

Accounting pro�t before tax

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate

Super tax

Revision in deferred tax rate

Tax e�ects of:

Share of pro�ts of equity-accounted investees

Income taxable under �nal tax regime (exports)

E�ect of prior year credits

Recognition of tax credits

Others

Reconciliation of tax (credit) / charge for the year

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

 

 (506,480)

 (146,879)
 -   
 -   

 (233,959)
 141,675 

 (467,192)
 -   

 150,623 
 (555,732)

  
     13,245,550 

 3,841,210 
 208,672 

 1,275,841 

 (203,574)
 (132,254)

 (1,336,707)
 (177,535)
 (327,388)

 3,148,265 
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  The tax authority again took up the same issues through notice dated 12 November 2013 for all the years under 
consideration. On detailed reply by the Company, the tax authority changed the dimension of the case to under utilisation 
of installed capacity and confronted the Company to assess the sales by assuming 98% capacity utilisation. Assessments 
for Tax Years 2010 and 2011 have been ammended raising a demand of Rs. 2.48 billion against which the Company �led 
appeals before the CIR(A) who deleted the addition made on the ground of suppression of sales and set-aside the order 
on the remaining issues assailed in the appeal. Both, the Company and the tax authority, have �led cross appeals before 
the ATIR, which are pending adjucation.        

 iii) The tax authority framed ex-parte amended assessment on 31 December 2015 for the Tax Year 2013, by charging tax on 
dividend income at corporate rate of tax of 35% and disallowing the adjustment of tax loss by Rs. 664 million. On Appeal 
the CIR(A) set-aside the amended assessment order. Being not satis�ed with the order of the CIR(A), the Company has �led 
an appeal before the ATIR which is subjudice till date. 

  In re-assessment, the Additional Commisioner Inland Revenue 'ADCIR' framed the order on 17 February 2017 by 
disallowing rebates and discounts; adjustment of losses in consequence of merger and charged tax on dividend income 
at corporate tax rate and created a demand of Rs. 867.65 million. The Company agitated the assessments in appeal as well 
as through recti�cation application. The CIR(A) disallowed the deduction of price match and set-aside the order on the 
issues of disallowance of losses and charging of corporate rate of tax of 35%. The Company has �led an appeal before ATIR 
against the order of CIR(A) which is pending adjucation.  

 iv) Tax authorities have amended the assessment for tax year 2014 u/s 122(5) & 122(5A) of the Ordinance by 
disallowing deductions on account of price match (local and export), freight on exports and also rejected 
exemption claimed on pro�t on US dollar account. The issue of freight on exports and price match on exports was 
settled in the Company's favour while price match local and pro�t on US dollar account are pending for 
adjudication in appeal before ATIR. Further on June 25, 2020 the tax authority has again recti�ed the assessment 
thereby disallowing adjustment claimed by the Company for tax refunds and credits of excess of minimum tax over 
normal tax liability for the prior years, thereby, raising tax demand of Rs. 453.32 million. Being dissatis�ed with the 
assessment order the Company has �led an appeal before CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

 v) The tax authority amended the assessment of the Company for the Tax Year 2015 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance 
thereby raising tax demand of Rs. 585.87 million on the issues of price match adjustments, advertisement expenses and 
computation of taxable income under Normal Tax Regime (NTR) and Presumtive Tax Regime (PTR) on arbitrary basis. The 
CIR(A) decided in favour of the Company over price match on exports and computation of taxable income under NTR and 
PTR and remanded back the issue of price match on local sales, while con�rmed the disallowance of advertisement 
expenses. Being aggrieved with the order of the CIR(A), the Company has preferred an appeal before the ATIR which is 
pending adjudication.

 vi) The tax authority amended the assessment for the Tax Year 2016 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance by disallowing 
purchase of tax losses of Pakcem, unabsorbed depreciation, price match adjustment against local sales, provision for 
gratuity, advertisement expenses and subsistence expenses, claimed during the year. In terms of the assessment order, 
demand of Rs. 2.35 billion (including super tax) was created. Being aggrieved with the order of the tax authority the 
Company has �led an appeal before the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.     

 vii) The tax authority ammended the assessment for the Tax Year 2017 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance by disallowing 
the price match adjustment against local sales. In terms of the amended assessment order, tax demand of Rs. 234.6 million 
was raised which has been paid under protest by the Company. Being aggrieved with the order of the tax authority the 
Company has �led an appeal before the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. 
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viii) The tax authority amended the assessment for Tax Year 2018 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance, by disallowing 
the price match adjustment against local sales, provision for employee retirement plan, advertisement and 
promotion, tax credit under section 65B of the Ordinance and adjustment of WWF against refund. In terms of the 
assessment order, refund claimed by the Company was reduced by Rs. 1.38 billion. Being aggrieved with the order 
so passed by the tax authority, the Company has �led an appeal before the CIR (A), which is pending adjudication.  
       

ix) The tax authority amended the assessment for Tax Year 2019 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance, by disallowing 
the price match adjustment against local sales, provision for gratuity and advertisement & promotion expenses. 
Further, the tax authority also curtailed tax credit under section 65B of the Ordinance, wrongly calculated super tax 
liability and charged WWF @ 2% of total income and disallowed adjustment of WWF against refund. In terms of the 
amended assessment order, tax demand of Rs. 429.90 million was raised. Being aggrieved with the order so passed by 
the tax authority, the Company has �led an appeal before the CIR (A), which is pending adjudication.  

    
34.2.2 The following income tax matters stand transferred to the Company from Mustehkam Cement Limited (MCL) under 

the scheme of amalgamation:        

i) The tax authority has framed the assessment u/s 122(5A) for Tax Year 2013 on 30 November 2016 in case of MCL 
(pre-merger return) by disallowing  adjustment of brought forward losses and charging WWF and re-calculating 
allocation of expenses to exports thereby creating tax demand of Rs. 124.82 million. The Company �led an appeal 
before CIR(A) who partially setaside and partially con�rmed the order. Being unsatis�ed with the order of the CIR(A), 
the Company has �led an appeal before the ATIR which is pending adjudication.  

    
34.2.3 The following income tax matters stand transferred to the Company pursuant to the of amalgamation of Pakcem 

with the Company:        

i) The tax authority vide an order dated 14 March 2011, raised a demand of Rs. 268.56 million by charging tax on reversal 
of interest and penal charges on foreign currency loans, for the Tax Year 2005. Pakcem �led an appeal with the CIR(A) 
which was decided against Pakcem. Pakcem then �led an appeal before the ATIR against the aforementioned order of 
CIR(A). The ATIR decided the appeal in favour of Pakcem . However, the tax authority being aggrieved by the order of 
the ATIR, has �led a reference application with the Honourable Islamabad High Court which is pending adjudication. 
    

ii) The tax authority vide an order dated 28 June 2013, reduced the tax refund of Pakcem from Rs. 122.66 million to Rs. 
71.48 million for the Tax year 2010 owing to alleged suppression of sales amounting to Rs. 331.90 million, charging of 
minimum tax, and apportionment of expenses between local and export sales. Pakcem �led a recti�cation 
application with the tax authority and also �led an appeal with the CIR(A). The CIR(A) vide its order dated 30 January 
2014 remanded back the case for denovo consideration. Re-assessment proceedings have not been initiated till date. 
    

iii) The tax authority amended the assessment for the Tax Year 2008 and reduced tax losses by Rs. 2.58 billion on account 
of a waiver of customs duties amounting to Rs. 815.18 million, alleged suppression of sales amounting to Rs. 1.19 
billion and computation of pro�ts attributable to exports. However, no tax demand was raised by the tax authority. 
Pakcem �led an appeal before the CIR(A) against the amended order, who set aside the matter of additions to income 
on account of waiver of customs duties and suppression of sales, while the matter of computation of pro�ts 
attributable to exports was, however, decided against Pakcem. Pakcem has �led an appeal against the decision of the 
CIR(A) before the ATIR, which is pending adjudication. 
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iv) The tax authorities framed order under section 4B of the Ordinance on 16 May 2017 to recover Rs. 28.75 million from 
Pakcem Limited on account of super tax allegedly short paid by the Company for the Tax Year 2015. Being aggrieved 
the Company �led an appeal before CIR(A) who, vide an ex-parte decision, disallowed the Company's contention. The 
Company agitated the order of CIR(A) before the ATIR who remanded the assessment back to tax authority for denovo 
consideration. After reassessment proceedings the DCIR passed the same order on 29 May 2019. Being aggrieved, the 
Company �led an appeal before the CIR(A) who, vide order dated February 20, 2020, has annulled the levy of super 
tax. Being dissatis�ed with the order of the CIR(A), the department has �led an appeal before the ATIR which is 
pending adjudication.  

  The management of the Company is confident of favourable outcomes of the appeals filed by it and 
accordingly no provisions have been made in these financial statements in respect of the matters discussed 
in notes 34.2.1 to 34.2.3 above.   

2020 2019

35. EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted
 
 Pro�t for the year attributable to owners of the Company (Rupees in '000)

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue    

 Earnings per share - basic (Rupees)  

 

 49,252 
 596,252,783 

0.08 

  10,097,285 
596,252,783 

 16.93 

Note (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)
2020 2019

25

13

36. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 
 Cash and bank balances  

 Short-term borrowings, secured  

 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash �ows

  347,691 

 (10,710,748)

 (10,363,057)

      462,912 

 (10,835,368)

 (10,372,456)

35.1 There is no dilution e�ect on earnings per share of the Company.  

36.1 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash �ows arising from �nancing activities

 213,797 

 -   

 -   

 (3,763,844)

 (3,763,844)

 3,577,516 

 10,498 

 -   

 -   

 3,588,014 

 37,967 

 5,838,890 

 11,656,333 

 (5,500,000)

 (3,763,844)

 2,392,489 

 3,577,516 

 10,498 

 536,725 

 (503,730)

 3,621,009 

 11,852,388 

 2,249,733 

 -   

 (2,200,000)

 -   

 (2,200,000)

 -   

 -   

 151,759 

 (201,492)

 (49,733)

 -   

(-------- Rupees '000 -------)

Long term
 �nancing

Long term 
musharaka

Unclaimed
dividend

  3,375,360 

 11,656,333 

 (3,300,000)

 -   

 8,356,333 

 -   

 -   

 384,966 

 (302,238)

 82,728 

 11,814,421 

Total

 Balance at 01 July 2019

 

 Changes from �nancing activities

 Proceeds from long term �nancing 

 Repayment of long term �nancing and musharaka 

 Dividend paid 

 Total changes from �nancing cash �ows 

 Other changes

 Dividend announced

 Withholding tax on dividend

 Finance cost

 Finance cost paid

 Total liability related changes

 Balance at 30 June 2020
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37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
 The aggregate amounts charged in these �nancial statements in respect of remuneration including bene�ts and perquisites of the 

 chief executive, directors and executives of the Company are given below: 

2020

(-------- Rupees '000 -------) (-------- Rupees '000 -------)

Chief
Executive Directors Executives

 Managerial remuneration 

 Bonus

 Provision for gratuity

 Unavailed leaves

 Others

  

 Number of persons

 30,000 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 30,000 

1

23,121 

 2,447 

 2,691 

 (44)

 -   

 28,215 

1

  562,870 

 54,437 

 5,910 

 (1,079)

 195 

 622,333 

137

2019

Chief
Executive Directors Executives

 30,000 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 30,000 

1

  22,020 

 4,427 

 4,124 

 (185)

 -   

 30,386 

1

   554,855 

 109,857 

 30,935 

 (1,838)

 81 

 693,890 

137

37.1 The  Chairman, Chief Executive,  Executive Director,  and eligible executives are also provided with vehicle facility 
while medical facility is provided to Executive Director and eligible executives as per their entitled limits. 

37.2 Executive means an employee whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million (2019: Rs. 1.2 million) during the year.

37.3 In addition to the above, meeting fees amounting to Rs. 0.69 million (2019: Rs. 0.78 million) were paid to 7 directors 
(2019: 8) who attended the Board of Directors meetings during the year.    

38. RELATED PARTIES          

38.1 Parent and ultimate controlling party and related party relationships   

 The Company is a subsidiary of Bestway (Holdings) Limited, U.K. ("the holding company"). Bestway (Holdings) 

Limited, U.K. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bestway Group Limited, U.K. ("the ultimate parent company") 

therefore, all subsidiaries and associated undertakings of the ultimate parent company are related parties of the 

Company. Other related parties comprise of directors, key management personnel, entities with common 

directorships, entities over which the directors are able to exercise in�uence and employee retirement funds. 

Balances with related parties are shown in notes 5.2, 12, 18, 24 and 25 and transactions with related parties are 

disclosed in notes 28, 30.2 and 37. Transactions and balances with related parties other than those disclosed 

elsewhere in these �nancial statements are as follows:       
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2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

 
 Transactions and balances with holding company  
 Dividend paid during the year  
 
 Transactions with associated undertakings under common directorship
 Dividend received
 Sale of cement
 Insurance claims received
 Sale proceeds from sale of vehicle
 Dividend paid
 Service/bank charges paid 
 Interest earned
 Rent paid
 Maintenance fee paid
 Insurance premium paid
 Purchase of vehicles      
 
 Transactions and balances with key management personnel  
 Remuneration, allowances and bene�ts  
 Dividend paid  
 Sale proceeds from sale of vehicle     

 Other related party transactions     
 Expense / employer's contribution to provident fund   
 Payments made to the gratuity fund    
 
 Balances with related parties 
 Trade debt
 Unclaimed dividend
 Insurance claim receivable

 

 1,927,526 

 1,131,326 
 757 

 74,485 
 -   

 231,089 
 12,562 

 365 
 16,643 

 1,786 
 29,576 

 -   

 58,905 
 613,737 

 -   

 15,432 
 7,800

 68 
 -   

 31,018  

 

 3,533,162 

 989,670 
 214 

 41,922 
 2,113 

 423,664 
 15,183 

 -   
 15,130 

 -   
 30,479 

 2,430 

 61,166 
 1,022,361 

 1,242 

 15,428 
 527,800 

 -   
 102,824 

 -   
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38.2 Following are the associated companies and related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions 
during the year:

38.3 Following particulars relate to associated companies incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Company had 
entered into transactions during the year:       

Number of shares 
held in the
Company

Basis of
relationship

Associated
company

Aggregate %age
shareholding

in the Company

 Bestway (Holdings) Limited, U.K.
 Bestway Northern Limited
 Bestway Foundation
 United Bank Limited  
 UBL Insurers Limited
 MAP Rice Mills (Pvt) Limited  

Holding Company
Common control

Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship

 336,445,868 
 - 

 23,313,532 
 1,481 

 - 
 - 

56.43%
 - 

3.91%
0.0002%

-
-

Number of shares 
held in the
Company

Basis of
relationship

Related
party

Aggregate %age
shareholding

in the Company

 Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez
 Mr. Zameer Mohammed Choudrey
 Mr. Mohammed Younus Sheikh
 Mr. Dawood Pervez
 Mr. Haider Zameer Choudrey
 Ms. Rakhshanda Choudrey
 Mr. Muhammad Irfan A. Sheikh
 Ms. Najma Naheed Pirzada
 Ms. Nazia Nazir
 Employees' Provident Fund
 Employees' Gratuity Fund 

Chairman
Chief Executive

Director
Director
Director

Close family member of CEO 
Director
Director
Director

Employees' Provident Fund 
Employees' Gratuity Fund

 21,640,779 
 12,358,184 
 11,711,513 
 37,536,226 
 18,695,317 

 185,425 
 161,983 

 67 
 29 

 - 
 - 

3.63%
2.07%
1.96%
6.30%
3.14%
0.03%
0.03%

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Particulars

 Registered address

 Country of incorporation  

 Basis of association

 

 Aggregate Percentage of shareholding

Bestway (Holdings)
Limited, U.K. 

Bestway
Northern Limited

2 Abbey Road, London NW10 7BW 

United Kingdom

Holding Company

56.43%

2 Abbey Road, London  NW10 7BW 

United Kingdom  

Group Company by virtue of sharing same 

parent
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Fair values and risk management     
    
39.1 Accounting classi�cation
 
 The following table shows the carrying amounts of �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities by categories: 

39.2 Fair values of �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities       
The carrying values of all �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities re�ected in the �nancial statements approximate 
their fair values.        

39.3 Financial risk management         

 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from �nancial instruments:    
1) Credit risk 

 2) Liquidity risk        
 3) Market risk         

39.3.1 Risk management framework         
The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for development and monitoring of the 
Company's risk management policies. 

 The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 
and systems are reviewed regularly to re�ect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The 
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

 

30 June 2020

(---------------Rupees - '000-----------)

Financial 
assets 

at amortised
 cost

Other �nancial 
liabilities 

at amortised
 cost

Financial 
assets 

at amortised
 cost

Other �nancial 
liabilities 

at amortised
 cost

Total

Financial assets

Deposits

Trade debts

Advances

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Current portion of long term �nancing

Long term �nancing

Current portion of long term musharaka

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend 

Short-term borrowings

 

 127,968 

 1,727,790 

 19,413 

 224,731 

 347,691

 2,447,593 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 

 127,968 

 1,727,790 

 19,413 

 224,731 

 347,691 

 2,447,593 

30 June 2019

(---------------Rupees - '000-----------)

Total

 136,164 

 2,101,856 

 13,395 

 13,200 

 462,912 

 2,727,527 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 

 136,164 

 2,101,856 

 13,395 

 13,200 

 462,912 

 2,727,527 

Note

21

22

24

25

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

  272,171 

 11,542,250 

 -   

 5,478,001   

 37,967 

 10,710,748 

 28,041,137 

   272,171 

 11,542,250 

 -   

 5,478,001   

 37,967 

 10,710,748 

 28,041,137 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

  3,375,360 

 -   

 2,249,733 

 5,633,657 

 213,797 

 10,835,368 

 22,307,915 

  3,375,360 

 -   

 2,249,733 

 5,633,657 

 213,797 

 10,835,368 

 22,307,915 

8

8

9

12

13
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 The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to 
the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal 
Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 
which are reported to the Audit Committee.   

 
39.3.2 Credit risk      
 Credit risk is the risk of �nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a �nancial instrument fails to 

meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and 
balances with banks. The carrying amount of �nancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.  

 Balances with banks          
The Company held balances of Rs. 347.69 million with banks at 30 June 2020 (2019: Rs. 462.91 million). 
Management assesses the credit quality of the counter parties as satisfactory. Geographic analysis and credit rating 
information is given below:          
    

 Trade debts    

 The Company's exposure to credit risk is in�uenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
However, management also considers the credit risk of its customer base. The Company has established a credit 
policy under which each new customer is assessed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's 
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are o�ered. Sales limits are established for each customer and 
are reviewed on monthly basis. Trade debts amounting to Rs. 108.12 million (2019: Rs 185.85 million) are secured 
against post dated cheques, letters of credit and bank guarantees. The Company maintains provision for doubtful 
debts that represents its estimate of probable losses in respect of trade debts.    
          

Pakistan:

Allied Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Soneri Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

United Bank Limited

BankIslami Pakistan Limited

PACRA

 JCR-VIS

PACRA

JCR-VIS

PACRA

JCR-VIS

PACRA

PACRA

PACRA

JCR-VIS

PACRA

AAA

AA

AA

AAA

AAA

AA+

AAA

AA-

AAA

AAA

A+

A1+

A-1+

A1+

A-1+

A1+

A-1+

A1+

A1+

A1+

A-1+

A1

  2 

 78 

 18 

 233 

 8,014 

 -   

 6 

 3 

 569 

 338,685 

 83 

 

 43,496 

 81 

 6 

 41,775 

 8,198 

 513 

 4,459 

 27 

 470 

 363,887 

 -   

Bank / �nancial institution Credit rating 

agency

Long term 
Credit 
rating

Short term 

Credit rating

2020

(Rupees '000)

2019

(Rupees '000)
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 At reporting date, the maximum credit exposure in trade 
debts by geographic region was as follows:   
     

 Domestic
 African region
 Asia   
    
 
 At reporting date, the maximum credit exposure in trade 

debts by type of customer was as follows:   
  

 Dealers    
 End-user customers    

 At reporting date, the ageing of trade debts and provision for doubtful debts were as follows:

 The management believes that all unimpaired amounts are collectable in full, based on historical payment behavior 
and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The movement in provision for doubtful debts during the year is 
disclosed in note 21.2.          
         

39.3.3 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter di�culty in meeting the obligations associated with its 
�nancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another �nancial asset. The Company's approach to 
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have su�cient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they 
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Company's reputation. The Company uses di�erent methods which assists it in monitoring cash �ow 
requirements and optimizing its cash return on investments. The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash 
and cash equivalents and other highly liquid assets at an amount in excess of expected cash out�ows on �nancial 
liabilities. In addition, the Company maintains lines of credit as mentioned in note 13.    
        

 
 1,668,795 

 55,228 
 3,767 

 1,727,790 

 
 

1,138,297 
 589,493 

 1,727,790  

 

 2,008,395 
 30,718 
 62,743 

 2,101,856 

 1,472,190 
 629,666 

 2,101,856 

(Rupees '000)
2020

Gross amount Provision for doubtful debts

 1-30 days

 31-60 days

 61-90 days

 Over 90 days  

  

 1,034,787

72,197

 42,007

 586,934

1,735,925

(Rupees '000)
2019

 1,372,604

 288,778

 234,301

 209,108 

 2,104,791

(Rupees '000)
2020

  -   

 -   

 -   

 (8,135)

 (8,135)

(Rupees '000)
2019

 -   

 -   

 -   

 (2,935)

 (2,935)

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)
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 Exposure to liquidity risk

 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of �nancial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are 
gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

 As disclosed in Notes 8 the term loan facilities contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenants may require the 
Company to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the table above. The Company monitors the compliance with 
covenants on regular basis. The Company has obtained a waiver of current ratio and interest coverage ratio from 
Allied Bank Limited and accordingly, this loan was not payable on demand as at 30 June 2020. Further, �nancial 
covenants compliance for Habib Bank Limited term loan will be applicable on  the company's' audited �nancials of 
30 June 2021.           
   

 The contractual cash �ows relating to mark-up on loans and borrowings have been determined on the basis of 
expected market mark-up rates and these amounts may change as market interest rates change. Except for these 
�nancial liabilities, it is not expected that the cash �ows included in the maturity analysis could occur signi�cantly 
earlier, or at signi�cantly di�erent amounts.        
            
       

39.3.4 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, 
will a�ect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of �nancial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing 
returns. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk.     
         

30 June 2020 (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

Contractual cash �owsCarrying
amount

Total 6 months
or less

6 to 12
months

1 to
2 years

2 to
5 years

  272,171 
 11,542,250 

 5,478,001 
 37,967 

 10,710,748 
 28,041,137

  272,171 
 11,542,250 

 5,478,001 
 37,967 

 10,710,748 
 28,041,137 

 
 158,051

 
 5,478,001 

 37,967 
 10,710,748 
 16,384,767

 
 114,120 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 114,120 

  -   
 828,167 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 828,167 

 -   
 10,714,083 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 10,714,083 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

  -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

30 June 2019

   3,582,340 
 -   

 2,388,918 
 5,633,657 

 213,797 
 10,835,368 
 22,654,080 

 
 1,837,536 

 -   
 1,225,715 
 5,633,657 

 213,797 
 10,835,368 
 19,746,073 

 
 1,744,804 

 -   
 1,163,203 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 2,908,007 

Financial liabilities
Current portion of long term financing
Long term financing
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Short-term borrowings

Financial liabilities
Current portion of long term financing
Long term financing
Current portion of long term musharaka
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Short-term borrowings

More than
5 years
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(a) Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency 
risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions of receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies.           
          

 Exposure to currency risk 

 The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk is as follows: 

 Sensitivity analysis          
    
 A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the USD against Pak Rupee at 30 June would have a�ected the 

measurement of �nancial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and a�ected the pro�t or loss and equity 
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and ignores any 
impact of forecast sales and purchases.      

(Rupees '000)

USD

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

 Trade debts
 Cash and bank balances
 Net exposure

 The following signi�cant exchange rates have been applied:    

  58,995 
 3,191 

 62,186 

    93,461 
 41,252 

 134,713 

 USD 1 168.05 162.87

2020
(Rupees)

2019
(Rupees)

2020
(Rupees)

2019
(Rupees)

Average rate Year-end spot rate

 168.19  136.11

 30 June 2020
 USD (10% movement)

 30 June 2019
 USD (10% movement)

6,219

13,471

 (6,219)

 
(13,471)

Strengthening
(Rupees '000)

Weakening
(Rupees '000)

Strengthening
(Rupees '000)

Weakening
(Rupees '000)

Pro�t or loss Equity, net of tax 

6,219

 13.471

 (6,219)

 
(13,471)
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(b) Interest rate risk          
    
 The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long term 
borrowings and short term deposits with banks.       
       

 Exposure to interest rate risk  

 The interest rate pro�le of the Company's interest-bearing �nancial instruments is as follows: 

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for �xed-rate instruments     

 The Company does not account for any �xed-rate �nancial assets or �nancial liabilities at fair value through pro�t or 
loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not a�ect pro�t or loss.   

 Cash �ow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments    

 A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased 
(decreased) pro�t or loss and equity by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables 
remain constant.           
   

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019
(Rupees '000)

Nominal amount

 Fixed-rate instruments
 Financial assets

 Variable-rate instruments
 Financial liabilities

 113 

 22,525,169 

   4,557 

 16,460,461 

 30 June 2020
 Variable-rate instruments
 Cash �ow sensitivity (net)

 30 June 2019
 Variable-rate instruments
 Cash �ow sensitivity (net)

 (225,252)
  (225,252)

(164,605)
 (164,605)

225,252
225,252

164,605
164,605

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Pro�t or loss Equity, net of tax 

 (225,252)
 (225,252)

 

(164,605)
 (164,605)

(Rupees '000) (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

225,252
225,252

164,605
164,605
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40. PROVIDENT FUND          
    
 The following information is based on un-audited  �nancial statements of the Provident Fund Trust as at 30 June 2020:

40.1 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

40.2 In addition to the above, funds amounting to Rs. 2.94 million (2019: Rs. 12.48 million) have been placed in saving accounts.

40.3 All the investments of the Provident Fund Trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of 
the Companies Act, 2017 (previously the Companies Ordinance, 1984) and the rules formulated for this purpose. 
       

2020  2019

 Size of the trust (Rupees '000)
 Cost of investments (Rupees '000)
 Percentage of investments made (%)
 Fair value of investments made (Rupees '000)

 255,952 
 216,968 

85%
 247,650 

240,520
165,000

69%
219,536

2020
%

 Quoted investments:
 National Investment Trust
 UBL's Separately Managed Account

 Others:
 Defence Saving Certi�cates
 Treasury Bills
 Pakistan Investment Bonds
 Term Deposit Receipts - MCB Islamic Bank

2019
%

23%
8%

31%

13%
3%
7%

46%
69%

100%

21%
10%
31%

12%
19%
38%

-
69%

100%

(Rupees '000)
2020

50,867
 25,240
 76,107

 
28,900 
 48,110 
94,533

-
 171,543 
 247,650 

(Rupees '000)
2019

  49,524 
 16,633
 66,157

28,900 
 6,992

 15,900 
 101,587 
 153,379 
 219,536

 Hattar
 Chakwal 
 Farooqia 
 Kallar Kahar 

  1,230,177 
 3,428,700 
 3,004,994 
 2,494,200 

 10,158,071 

 1,230,177 
 3,428,700 
 3,004,994 
 2,494,200 

 10,158,071 

   962,197 
 2,085,618 
 1,963,274 
 1,407,534 
 6,418,623 

  991,912 
 2,327,647 
 1,795,791 
 1,511,974 
 6,627,324 

(Metric Tonnes)
2020

Available Capacity

2019
(Metric Tonnes)

2020

Actual Production

2019

41. PLANTS' CAPACITIES AND PRODUCTION - Clinker  
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41.1 The actual production is generally adjusted in view of existing and expected market conditions.   
          

42. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2020 2019

 Number of employees
 Average number of employees

   1,501 
 1,662 

   2,051 
 2,125 

   
43. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR SHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES    

 As per the requirements of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, shariah compliant companies and 
companies listed on the Islamic Index shall disclose the following:      
  

 For pro�ts earned and �nance cost on conventional loans, refer to note 28 and 32.   

 The Company maintains bank accounts with Meezan Bank Limited, Faysal Bank Limited, Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan 
Limited and BankIslami Pakistan Limited. The Company has obtained facilities of short term running �nance (Running 
Musharka) facilities from Meezan Bank Limited, Faysal Bank Limited and BankIslami Pakistan Limited. (refer note 13). 
       

44. IMPACT OF COVID-19

 During the year, the World Health Organization declared the Novel strain of Corona virus (Covid-19) a global pandemic 
and recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide. The Federal and Provincial governments of 
Pakistan also took various measures, including imposition of lockdown, from the end of March 2020 to contain the 
spread of Covid-19. This caused an overall economic slowdown and varying degree of disruption to various 
businesses including cement, resulting in temporary decline in sale of cement. However, the Government’s initiative 
to allow the construction sector to re-open during the last quarter of the �nancial year along with various other 
incentives for businesses helped in reviving the demand for cement from June 2020 onwards.  

 Company’s management has assessed the possible accounting implications arising from Covid-19 for these �nancial 
statements, including but not limited to impairment of �nancial and non-�nancial assets, and concluded that there has 
been no material accounting impact of Covid-19 on these �nancial statements. From the very outset of Covid-19, the 
management has adopted various policies and practices to minimise adverse impact of Covid-19 on the business and is 
continuously monitoring the situation in order to proactively address any challenges which may arise from Covid-19. 
       

45. DIVIDEND

 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 August 2020 has not proposed a �nal dividend.

46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION 

 These �nancial statements were authorised for issue on 28 August 2020 by the Board of Directors.

(Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)

2020 2019

 Long term loans obtained as per Islamic mode  
 Short term running �nance facilities as per Islamic mode 
 Shariah compliant bank balances   
 Finance cost on Islamic mode of �nancing   
 

 -   
 1,046,125 

 179 
 234,430 

 2,249,733 
 -   
 594 

 358,514 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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2020

OPERATING RESULTS RUPEES IN MILLIONS

2019 2018 2017
Restated

2016 2015

Net turnover
Cost of sales
Gross pro�t
Operating pro�t
Finance cost
Pro�t before tax
Pro�t for the year

 37,129 
 36,012 

 1,117 
 (26)

 2,152 
 (506)

 49 

 52,884 
 33,928 
 18,956 
 14,217 

 600 
 14,964 
 13,158 

 53,602 
 37,557 
 16,045 
 13,290 

 1,498 
 13,246 
 10,097 

 51,624 
 29,091 
 22,533 
 17,439 

 831 
 18,664 
 13,293 

 45,721 
 24,573 
 21,148 
 16,789 

 1,823 
 17,078 
 11,880 

 32,693 
 19,900 
 12,793 
 10,577 

 457 
 12,068 

 9,621 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION RUPEES IN MILLIONS
Share capital and reserves
Property, plant and equipment
Long term �nancing and musharka
Net current (liabilities) / assets

   54,653 
 55,789 
 11,542 
 (1,441)

 53,310 
 56,086 

 5,500 
 (7,250)

   57,606 
 57,242 

 -   
 (9,680)

 47,769 
 44,732 
 10,000 

 2,008 

 41,983 
 42,955 
 16,500 

 2,031 

 36,443
 43,448
 23,299

 (523)

SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL RATIOS PERCENTAGES
Gross pro�t ratio
Net pro�t ratio
Interest coverage ratio
Return on equity
Earnings per share
Dividend

  3.01 
 0.13 
 0.76 
 0.09 
 0.08 

 30 

 35.84 
 24.88 
 25.94 
 24.68 
 22.07 

 120 

 29.93 
 18.84 

 9.84 
 17.53 
 16.93 

 110 

 43.65 
 25.75 
 23.46 
 27.83 
 22.29 

 120 

 46.25 
 25.98 
 10.37 
 28.30 
 20.16 

 100 

 39.13 
 29.43 
 27.41 
 26.40 
 16.56 

 100 

IN THOUSAND METRIC TONNES
Despatches of cement and 
Xtreme bond

 7,311  8,590  8,126  7,478  6,904  4,809 

KEY OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL
DATA FOR SIX YEARS
AS AT 30 JUNE  2020

BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF
SHARES HELD

SHAREHOLDING

FROM TO

5543
1952

695
872
162

67
35
19
18

8
8

14
8
5
2
1
7
7
2
4
2
2
2
2
1
3
4
2
1
1
1
1
4
3
4
1
2
2
2
1
2
1
1
1
5

1
101
501

1001
5001

10001
15001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
75001
80001
85001
90001
95001

105001
115001
125001
135001
150001
155001
175001
185001
190001
195001
215001
230001
240001
255001
275001
285001
290001
295001
300001
380001
505001
620001
675001

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
80000
85000
90000
95000

100000
110000
120000
130000
140000
155000
160000
180000
190000
195000
200000
220000
235000
245000
260000
280000
290000
295000
300000
305000
385000
510000
625000
680000

183650
558930
573034

2148894
1253615

868284
619676
437629
509196
267932
302232
598610
390182
263805
114800

62370
471150
540426
161983
350838
185900
200000
211100
235633
129904
417000
618291
316541
176190
185425
195000
200000
878460
696758
969449
255250
556358
574259
590000
300000
607794
381100
507310
623664

3394400
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BESTWAY CEMENT LIMITED

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF
SHARES HELD

SHAREHOLDING

FROM TO

1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1

 9,507 

730001
800001
940001
955001

1060001
1085001
1180001
1240001
1355001
1570001
1710001
1910001
2695001
4320001
7875001

11710001
12355001
18695001
21640001
23320001
18745001
37535001
40485001

336445001

735000
805000
945000
960000

1065000
1090000
1185000
1245000
1360000
1575000
1715000
1915000
2700000
4325000
7880000

11715000
12360000
18700000
21645000
23325000
18750000
37540000
40490000

336450000

733316
803037
944715
958778

1064812
2178724
1180650
1244116
1357760
1573445
1711500
3822942
2698994
4323753
7878441

11711513
12358184
18695317
21640779
23323432
37496432
37536226
40487027

336445868
 596,252,783 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS   SHARES HELD %

Directors, Chief Executive, their Spouse and Minor Children     
Associated Companies Undertakings & Related Parties     
NIT/ICP     
Banks, Development Finance Institutions and Non Banking Financial Institution     
Insurance Companies     
Modarabas and Mutual Funds     
Shareholders holding 10%  *     
General Public      
a. Local    
b. Foreign    
Others     
i. Foreign Companies    
ii. Joint Stock Companies and Trusts     
     
T O T A L     
* Bestway (Holdings) Limited is holding 56.43% shares of the Company.     

102,289,523
359,769,300

564
2,036,860
1,176,423
1,747,652

 -   

 127,843,617 
 -   

 32,200 
1,356,644

17.16
60.34

0.00
0.34
0.20
0.29
0.00

21.44
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.23

 596,252,783 100.00
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  Friday, October 2, 2020 at 3:00 p.m.

2020

PROXY FORM












